LOUISVILLE WATER ANNUAL REPORT

Louisville Water

L O U I S V I L L E W AT E R A N N U A L R E P O R T
QUALITY WATER…QUALITY OF LIFE
Every day, nearly one million people depend on
Louisville Water Company to provide safe, high-quality drinking water that we’re proud to deliver. Louisville
Water has a 159-year history of quality, innovation, value and service. The company began operations in 1860
as Kentucky’s first public water provider and today supplies water and fire protection to communities in Louisville Metro and parts of Bullitt, Hardin, Nelson, Oldham,
Shelby and Spencer counties.

LOUISVILLE WATER MISSION
Provide the highest quality water and related services
through dedicated employees who deliver exceptional
value to our customers, shareholder, and the communities we serve.

LOUISVILLE WATER VISION
Louisville Water will lead the industry with superior quality, service, innovation and value.
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Louisville Water Company is an Equal Opportunity Employer. All qualified applicants receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color,
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, or protected
veteran status, and will not be discriminated against on the basis of disability.

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE
NEARLY ONE MILLION PEOPLE use Louisville Water’s product every day in Jefferson
and surrounding counties. To achieve our critical mission in 2019, we used the Strategic
Business Plan (SBP), which launched in 2018, as our guide. Louisville Water’s union,
Local 1683, also launched a strategic plan in 2019 that largely mirrors the company’s to
help ensure we all work in a united fashion.
By implementing the SBP’s objectives, we finished the year with outstanding results.
We sold 33.4 billion gallons of water and earned $182 million in revenue from water
sales. Our owner, Louisville Metro, received a solid return on its investment—as it has
for many years.

Spencer Bruce,
President & CEO

In an ongoing effort to improve infrastructure, we neared the final phase of our three-yearlong Eastern Parkway Project. We also completed the first round of pipeline condition
assessment inspections for 106 miles of large diameter concrete pipe. In addition, we
made significant progress in replacing the remaining lead service lines in our distribution
system (we replaced our last known lead service line in February 2020).
Customers were satisfied with our work as the number of water quality complaints
from customers fell to a record low. We continued our achievement of receiving zero
water quality violations, and the state reported no findings during the annual water quality
lab audits.
While accomplishing these huge wins, we also kept the future in mind. In October,
Louisville Water sold $155.5 million in bonds, of which $88 million will fund capital
projects over the next several years. The remainder of the bond proceeds went toward
refinancing the company’s Series 2009 bonds. The refinancing will save the company
$8.6 million over the next 10 years. Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s assigned their highest ratings of Aaa/AAA to the newly issued Series 2019 bonds and affirmed the same
high ratings on all of the company’s previously issued bonds.
We also prioritized new lines of business and regionalization. For example, we continued
our work on two products, Pure Spout™ and Water Dog. Wholesale water sales continued to grow, as Hardin County Water District No. 1 began purchasing our water to deliver
to Meade County.
With all our great success in 2019, we also paused to remember the tragic loss of several
employees, including Jimmy Stone. Please read our tribute section, “In Memoriam.”
As you read on, you’ll find that this annual report is organized by the critical priorities
in our SBP: Water Quality, Infrastructure Investment, Customers and Stakeholders,
Employer of Choice, Business Transformation, and Financial Viability. Within each priority,
we share detailed outcomes as well as key performance indicators.
I am honored to lead this organization and proud of all we can accomplish when we come
together for a common goal.
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IN MEMORIAM

2 0 1 9 W AT E R B Y T H E N U M B E R S

THE LOUISVILLE WATER family experienced
several heartaches in 2019. We grieved the loss
of employees Shana Strawser, Jesse Davidson,
Cornita Anderson, and Vince Williams.
However, most tragically, the Louisville Water
family lost employee Jimmy Stone on July 22,
2019. Stone and Chad Harper, a fellow member
of the fire hydrant crew, were hit by a car while
working on a job site at 23rd and Oak Streets.
“Jimmy was a giver—loved to give of himself to
people and causes,” said Ginny Adwell, former
Field Customer Service Supervisor and Metering Maintenance Supervisor. “He was humble,
} Chad Harper and Jimmy Stone extremely unselfish, always smiling, a soccer fanatic, and loved his family. And his laugh—when
Jimmy laughed, you could not help but laugh with him.”

} Cornita Anderson

} Jesse Davidson

“When we acquired Goshen Water Systems [in 2002], we didn’t have any mapping on the
area,” Adwell said. “Jimmy was key to Louisville Water in making this acquisition successful.
I worked with him for three months in mapping all the meters and identifying gate valves. He
was the Goshen guru. He knew where everything was.”
He “was structured and always organized—kept everything in order and clean,” said Adam
Carter, President of AFSCME Local Union 1683. “He had a uniqueness about him too,
along with his quirky laugh and smile. He always brought his lunch with him every day, and
it was always a peanut butter and jelly sandwich.”
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} Vince Williams

“I knew Jimmy from both working with him and due to his love of soccer,” said Spencer
Bruce, President & CEO. “Our sons played against each other and even though they were
competitors, we would sometimes sit with each other to watch the games. When we sat
together, Jimmy would talk about his family with an occasional discussion about work. You
could tell he loved his family very much. If the discussion shifted to work, he was always
complimentary, never complained, was willing to offer suggestions and was appreciative
of his Louisville Water family. He will be missed.”

EDUCATION program reached 40,000 students in 110 schools.
Our community outreach program attended over 100 EVENTS.
Education and community OUTREACH programs together reached more than 64,000 people.
Pure tap program reached more than 1.3 million people through Louisville pure tap to go, Fill & Chill

Officers who supply safety services for Louisville Water projects also provided an escort
for Stone’s funeral procession to Cave Hill Cemetery. His hydrant crew truck and multiple
Louisville Water vehicles joined the procession, too. Along the route, fire departments paid
their respects by lining the roads with trucks, and firefighters stood at attention as the
procession went under a large American flag above Grinstead Drive. A fire department also
provided a bagpipe player for the service at the cemetery.

11 branded water bottle FILL STATIONS added in 2019. More than 90 branded water bottle fill

The annual Louisville pure tap® 5k race in September was dedicated to Stone and Harper.
Stone’s wife, Carla, was our guest of honor, and Stone and Harper’s hydrant crew truck
served as the pace vehicle.
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®

and product donations.

} Shana Strawser
Jimmy Stone – Plumber Leader’s
Assistant, 17 years
Cornita Anderson, V-Soft Consulting
temporary employee, 5 months in
Customer Service Center
Jesse Davidson – Construction
Inspector, 15 years
Vince Williams – Water Quality
Technician, 36 years
Shana Strawser – Dispatcher, 3 years

stations overall.

In 2019, the average cost for a household using 4,000 gallons of water a month was
Customers can fill up
eight-ounce glasses of Louisville pure tap® for just a penny.

75

$23.16.
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W AT E R Q U A L I T Y
The water quality team monitored emerging contaminates called PFAS—perfluoroalkyl and
polyfluoroalkyl substances. These man-made compounds have been detected everywhere
in our environment, including in lakes and rivers, wildlife, and our food supply. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is evaluating drinking water standards for two of these
compounds, PFOA and PFOS. Louisville Water’s PFOA and PFOS levels have remained
much lower than the EPA’s current health advisory level of 70 parts per trillion, but our
research in this area continues.
At the B.E. Payne Water Treatment Plant, we completed a feasibility study on chlorine dioxide treatment for water quality enhancement. We also led a two-year national risk-benefit
assessment for nitrification control to help identify opportunities to reduce health risks in
drinking water treatment.
In April 2019, the department published a research paper on nitrification in the Journal of Environmental
Engineering, and in October the paper was nominated for the 2020
Samuel Arnold Greeley Award, the
highest research paper award from the
American Society of Civil Engineers.
(The paper was announced as the winner of the award in April 2020.)

} Our scientists continuously
monitor water quality.

2019 WAS ANOTHER banner year for water quality. Louisville Water’s treatment plants continued their ranking as two of the top 18 in North America
for producing outstanding drinking water by the Partnership for Safe Water.
Louisville pure tap® is known as one of the best in the country, and our customers agree —Louisville Water logged a record low number of water quality complaints in 2019—65, which is a 56 percent reduction from 2018. Additionally, J.
D. Power’s Water Utility Customer Satisfaction Survey results ranked Louisville
Water as one of the highest rated utilities in the country for water quality.
A rainy June resulted in the lowest amount of water pumped since 1992, and
pumping numbers went down again because of heavy rainfall in August. However, by September the pumping numbers rebounded with unusually extreme
heat. October 2019 was the highest pumping month for the month of October
since 2010—3.9 billion gallons.
During our annual water quality audits, the Kentucky Division of Water found no
deviations and had no formal recommendations for first time in more than 30
years. It was also the 12th consecutive year with no water quality violations. Our
lab was inspected by the state and continued to be in perfect compliance with
federal and state water quality regulations.
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In August, we received more accolades at the KY/TN Water Professionals
Conference, hosted by Louisville Water and Louisville MSD. The Crescent Hill Water
Treatment Plant was awarded Treatment Plant of the Year for large systems, and
Louisville Water received the Large Distribution System Operations of the Year Award.

} Louisville Water earned

accolades at the 2019 Water
Professionals Conference.

Our water quality monitoring strategy
was put to the test in 2019. From August
to October, we added activated carbon
to the Crescent Hill Reservoir to combat any taste and odor issues caused
by the unusually hot and dry weather. In
addition, we successfully managed two
incidents on the Ohio River:
• In July, a Jim Beam warehouse fire in Woodford County caused liquid from 45,000 barrels
of early aging bourbon to flow into the Kentucky River. The bourbon spill made its way
into the Ohio River but after much sampling, our water quality team determined that the
billions of gallons of water flowing in the Ohio River diluted the bourbon spill before it
made it to our intake valves. Regardless, Louisville Water employed activated carbon to
ensure no taste or odor concerns occurred.
• In October, a recreational public health advisory was issued for the Ohio River near Louisville because a harmful algal bloom was detected. This bloom was caused by the hot and
dry weather conditions. These algae release toxins into the water that must be treated to
protect public health. In addition, when certain types of algae naturally bloom and die, it
can create a musty odor in the water. Louisville’s drinking water remained safe because
our treatment process removes algal toxins and uses activated carbon to remove taste
and odor elements.
2019 Annual Report | 6

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT
MAINTENANCE AND UPDATES of Louisville
Water’s pipes, plants, and pumps is an ongoing effort. For some of the company’s major infrastructure projects, 2019 marked the home stretch. We
started the final phase of replacing all known lead
service lines in our distribution system. While lead
is not in our source water, water can pick up lead
particles in service lines and fixtures as it travels
through customers’ pipes into their homes. That
is why replacing our known lead service lines has
been a priority for Louisville Water for many years.
The work we did in 2019 contributed to the completion of this major milestone for the company.
(We are proud to share that the last known line was
officially replaced on February 19, 2020.)

} Louisville Water has

replaced all known lead
service lines in its system.

} We’re nearing the final phase
of a multi-year project to
repair the main along Eastern
Parkway.

The Eastern Parkway Project also entered its last
phase in 2019. The project replaces one of our
system’s oldest and largest water mains, nearly
100 years after the main was first installed. Working with engineers and the community, Louisville
Water developed a solution to preserve the character of the historic Eastern Parkway corridor while
rehabilitating the main. Because most of the pipe sits
underneath the roadway, crews used a technology
called “slip-lining” where a new, smaller 42-inchdiameter pipe is pushed inside the existing water
main. This prevents digging up large sections of the
roadway. Phase Three of this project included work
on Lexington Road in the Crescent Hill neighborhood. The project concludes in 2020 with a total of
6.4 miles of replaced mains and a cost of approximately $26 million.
In addition, 2019 marked the completion of the first
round of condition assessment for existing large
pre-stressed concrete cylinder pipe transmission
mains. This effort began in 2009, and since then we
have inspected over 106 miles of pipe. Over the last
10 years, 232 pipe sections have been rehabilitated
or replaced.
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More than 50 employees began working on the
second phase of our Work and Asset Management (WAM) program. This software-based
tool helps Louisville Water strategically
manage its assets. The first phase of WAM
focused on plants and other facilities while
the second phase involves our water distribution operations.
The Crescent Hill Water Treatment Plant
handles most of Louisville Water’s daily
production of millions of gallons of drinking
water. The facility has two electrical feeds for
the operation of the plant and pumping station
but needed a standby generator in case of an
emergency. By the end of 2019, work on a
standby generator was 90 percent complete
(Louisville Water added standby generators
at the smaller B.E. Payne Water Treatment Plant in 2005.) In 2019, the company also approved the installation of a backup generator for the pumping stations at
Louisville Water Tower Park.
In October of 2019, Louisville Water opened
the doors of Pumping Station No. 3 to reveal the results of the facility’s two-year renovation. A project highlight was the “Quiet
Giant,” the 100-foot-tall steam engine installed
in 1919. Though it hasn’t been operated since
the 1970s, the restoration is an impressive
reminder of our history of innovation and our
longstanding commitment to infrastructure
investment.

} Visitors marveled at

the “Quiet Giant,” a
100-foot-tall steam
engine installed in 1919.
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CUSTOMERS AND STAKEHOLDERS

} We offered a yoga

session at the Crescent
Hill Reservoir.
The company’s customer and community
outreach efforts also expanded, achieving impressive numbers. In fact, our education and
community involvement programs reached more
than 64,000 people in 2019—a new record!
Below were just some of our unique education
and community driven programs:

WE PROVIDE HIGH-QUALITY water to our customer’s homes, but we are also connected to them in many
other ways. We deliver water at community events, we
teach in local schools, and we support various organizations. In fact, Louisville Water was ranked third in the
Midwest for overall customer satisfaction in the J.D.
Power Water Utility Customer Satisfaction Survey’s
2019 results.

} Our Call Center increased their
speed in answering calls and
helping customers.

• We welcomed visitors to explore our rich history and have fun at Louisville Water Tower Park
and the Crescent Hill Reservoir. Guests celebrated the centennial of a historic steam pump,
enjoyed Walking Wednesdays, and collected
treats at Trick or Treatment, our community
Halloween party.

Customer satisfaction begins with answering customer
questions. Louisville Water’s Customer Service Center significantly increased the speed in answering calls and providing support, thanks in part to an improved self-service
Interactive Voice Response (IVR) system. Once launched,
the call center received 100 to 150 fewer daily calls. The
Average Speed to Answer (ASA) rate has been reduced to
less than a minute.

• Educators visited 110 schools throughout our
service area to share science and history lessons
with more than 40,000 students.

The reduction in call volume also lowered the customer abandonment rate as well as the handle time (the
average time it takes to handle a call from start to finish).
The overall results were the best fourth quarter Customer
Service Center metrics in the past five years. We also expanded our self-service options with the addition of a lobby
payment kiosk.

• We maintained in-depth partnerships with
several schools and participated in events
such as Science Nights and Family Fun Nights.
These schools included Field Elementary,
Gutermuth Elementary, St. Margaret Mary
Catholic School, Cedar Grove Elementary
and Lebanon Junction Elementary. We have
library partnerships in both Bullitt and Jefferson Counties that also hosted our programs.

Work continued on Advanced Metering Infrastructure, or
AMI, which involves upgrading traditional water meters
with wireless equipment that sends data to pole-mounted receivers. Once finished, most customers will receive
monthly billing, enhanced online monitoring of water usage, and faster leak detection. Benefits to Louisville Water
will include enhanced safety and data collection as well as
operational efficiencies. In the fall, the project was awarded
to Itron, and it started with a small-scale meter installation.
In 2020, we began real-world testing and billing of the AMI
system as well as development of a new customer portal.

} Our water kept athletes hydrated

• We partnered with Bellarmine University nursing
students and area high school students to share
a ‘Clean Hands Up’ message with 3,500 children
to combat the spread of the flu. Teams went to
elementary schools and day care centers to put
pretend germs (a mixture of hand lotion and
fluorescent paint) on the children’s hands and
teach effective hand-washing skills. Under a
black light, the “germs” glowed bright green if
they missed spots.

during several events.

} Louisville Water educators led

hand-washing lessons throughout the community.
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CUSTOMERS AND STAKEHOLDERS
• A Living Green Wall to combat air pollution was planted at
the Southwick Community Center in the Park Duvalle neighborhood. Our water kept both the plants and the volunteers
hydrated.

• Our staff manned hydration stations at Kentucky
Derby Festival events such as the Taste of Derby Festival, BourbonVille, WineFest, and BeerFest. We also
served water at the Kentucky Craft Bash, World Fest,
and Taste of Louisville.

• We elevated our reach and impact through strategic partnerships. Partners included: Blackacre State Nature Preserve,
the Louisville Zoo, Bernheim Arboretum and Research
Forest, the YMCA, the Girl Scouts, and Smile Kentucky.

• We served drinking water at WFPK Waterfront Wednesdays and for The Local Lineup at Against The Grain
Brewery. We also expanded to new events, including
the Highland Festival Grounds at Kentucky Expo Center, where our hydration stations were available at three
music festivals: Hometown Rising, Bourbon & Beyond,
and Louder Than Life. In all, Louisville Water helped
nearly a quarter million concert goers stay hydrated.

• We participated in health and career fairs with a wide range
of organizations, including Sullivan University, UPS, University of Louisville, Dawn Foods, the Lighthouse Foundation, the
Portland Community Center, several local churches, and the
Southwick and Shawnee Health Centers.

} We installed branded fountains
at UofL and several other
community locations.

• For the first time, we served pure tap at the Norton
Children’s Hospital Splash ‘n’ Dash Walk/Run—an event born
out of the tragic death of 15-year-old Max Gilpin due to a
heat-related illness. His mother, Michele Crockett, dedicated
her life to educating the public on proper hydration and partnered with Norton Children’s Hospital to facilitate the launch.
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We promoted local products by hosting the annual Buy
Local Fair at Louisville Water Tower Park, supporting the
Local Business Expo, South Points Buy Local Fair and
NULU Block Fest with pure tap, and sponsoring a Frankfort Avenue Business Association Trolley.
Without great water, we couldn’t have great bourbon. Our
bourbon partnerships now include Michter’s Fort Nelson
Distillery and Kentucky Peerless Distilling, both located
downtown. Visitors can now learn the story of how our
water quality plays a role in creating the perfect bourbon.

• Louisville City Football Club asked us to partner for efforts
such as healthy hydration training for their soccer camps,
a water station on Fan Appreciation Night, and a branded
water bottle fill station at their new stadium.
• We installed water stations at Waterfront Botanical Gardens,
Logan Street Market, and Old Forester’s Paristown Hall. We
also installed seven water stations co-branded with Louisville
Water and university graphics at the University of Louisville’s
Swain Student Activities Center.

and history lessons with more
than 40,000 students.

• We loaned out more than 1,000 pure tap coolers in
2019, and we provided 622,000 free pure tap products
to partners, community groups, and non-profits. Sports
teams, ministries, environmental groups, and others
emphasized the importance of choosing tap water over
other drinks by serving and talking about our product.

In addition, more than a million people benefitted from the
Louisville pure tap® program. We had a presence at community
events by either staffing hydration stations or providing coolers
and compostable cups. Examples include:
• We kept runners and walkers hydrated at the Louisville Triple
Crown of Running, the Kentucky Derby Festival miniMarathon/Marathon, the Tour de Lou, the Fall Runathon, the Iron
Man competition, and the Mayor’s semi-annual Hike, Bike
and Paddle.

} Our educators shared science

} We served pure tap at events
throughout our service area.

} More than one million people benefitted from the pure tap program.

Customers also increased their engagement with us on
social media through our digital channels. Our followers on Facebook increased 32 percent from 2018. On
Twitter, we earned 77,000 impressions with an average
of 21 tweets/retweets per week by the end of 2019.
Louisville rapper Jack Harlow and rock singer Bret
Michaels tweeted shout outs of support for pure tap,
which made for memorable highlights for the year.
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EMPLOYER OF CHOICE
LOUISVILLE WATER WORKED hard to remain a place where people desire to
work and develop careers. Key areas the company focuses on are attracting diverse
talent, retaining existing talent, and providing development and growth opportunities within the organization.
Our goal is to provide tangible items such as competitive pay, a comprehensive
benefits package, paid leave and those not so tangible aspects such as a feeling of
trust, respect, and empowerment. These key focus areas lead us to a positive and
engaging relationship between Louisville Water and its employees.
Throughout 2019, Louisville Water launched multiple initiatives to attract and retain
employees including a revamped employee orientation program, years of service
award program, and a customer service job fair. The job fair brought in nearly 400
prospective applicants. In addition, Louisville Water maintained excellent insurance
benefits and provided financial assistance for employee YMCA memberships.
Keeping employees safe is a priority year after year. Louisville Water significantly improved year over year safety performance as measured by the Occupational
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA). The OSHA recordable injury rate was
2.35 for the year. The Preventable Motor Vehicle Accident Rate for the year was
1.27 and the Preventable Motor Vehicle Accidents for 2019 was 27. Louisville
Water employees worked 1,022,479 hours, and our fleet drove 2,118,143 miles.

} Louisville Water honors its veteran employees.
Notably, Louisville Water leadership and Local 1683 continued to mutually and cooperatively work to strengthen relationships and business opportunities. Local 1683 also released a Strategic Plan that complements the company’s Strategic Business Plan. These
collaborations ensure that all internal stakeholders have a voice and work together to
achieve the common mission.
Yet again, Louisville Water employees dug deep to support their community and other
communities around the world through the 2019 Combined Giving Campaign. The effort
raised nearly $145,000 through a combination of employee payroll deductions, one-time
contributions, and fundraising events. The campaign benefitted four charities: Fund for
the Arts, Metro United Way, the Louisville Water Foundation, and Water for People.
Louisville Water donated $250,000 to the Foundation to support the Customer Assistance Program, which helps customers who struggle to pay their water and wastewater
bills. These funds also supported water assistance to impoverished communities in this
country and abroad, as well as, water education in the Louisville region.
In addition to dollars, our employees also gave of their time, logging 4,752 volunteer
hours for more than 130 organizations. The American Water Works Association, the
Kentucky Derby Festival Committee, Habitat for Humanity and Dress for Success were
a few of the groups that benefited.
Our employees also were recognized for their hard work this year. Louisville Water
Billing Manager Kimberly Cox received the National Small Business Institute’s Graduate Project of the Year Award. Her Executive MBA project entitled, ‘Louisville Water
Company Metering Project’ explained how advanced technology is used in the company’s upcoming Advance Metering Infrastructure (AMI) project.

} Louisville Water and Local 1683

continued to strengthen relationships and
explore business opportunities.
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In April, Louisville Water received a plaque of appreciation for employees who served as
mentors to students at Louisville’s West End School. The students participated in a national leadership development program called the Ambassadors of the Evers Academy
for African-American Males (A-TEAAM). Employees Keith Barnett and Nate Frederick
along with Vice President Terrence Spence joined in mentoring young men along with
mentors from other Louisville organizations, including Louisville MSD. We joined forces
again with MSD in November to honor employees who are military veterans with a
breakfast and recognition celebration.
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B U S I N E S S T R A N S F O R M AT I O N

} Louisville Water completed a

A FOCUS ON MARKET EXPANSION, economic
development, and diversification led to several successes in 2019. These business initiatives helped
boost revenue, which is a major concentration for
Louisville Water as water sales continue to decline
due to water efficiency and conservation.

In one project, Louisville Water expanded its footpipeline to deliver up to seven
million gallons daily to Shelbyville. print with the completion of a pipeline along I-64
that makes it possible to deliver up to seven million
gallons of drinking water daily to the city of Shelbyville. This two-year pipeline extension project to
Shelby County allowed Shelbyville Municipal Water
& Sewer Commission (Shelbyville Water) to begin
service with Louisville Water on Dec. 3, 2019. As
part of the project, Louisville Water installed approximately 10 miles of a 24-inch-diameter water
main along the interstate from the Jefferson/Shelby
County line to connect with Shelbyville Water near
Highway 55 in Shelby County. Louisville Water now
provides water to nine wholesale customers in the
surrounding counties.
Delivering water to neighboring cities is just one
of the many innovative ideas that Louisville Water
pursued this year. Developed by our talented scientists, Pure Spout™ is a filter that removes lead in
drinking water fountains by fitting a device over existing spouts. Many drinking water fountains have
old plumbing and internal parts that could leach lead
into the water. The Pure Spout™ filter is nearing
production, and we will launch a pilot program that
tests it in the community in the summer of 2020.
Another product invented by Louisville Water employees is called Water Dog water pumps. These
pumps can quickly eliminate standing water from
meter vaults, boat hulls, tubs, sinks, basements and
other areas that hold water. Louisville Water tested
several Water Dog pumps in the field.
Louisville Water continued to grow the partnership
with the River Ridge Development Authority by
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creating a draft contract for a long-term agreement and a preliminary design for long-term
water supply. We also supported economic growth in our area by responding to more
than 40 requests about our capacity to serve
existing and potential new businesses looking to expand or move to the Louisville area.
We partnered with Greater Louisville Inc. and
Louisville Forward to promote the region as a
great place for businesses to locate—especially given the abundance, affordability and high
quality of our water.
The One Water effort between Louisville
Water and Louisville MSD progressed through
the ongoing implementation of the One Water
Strategic Plan. An important strategy as we
continue to partner with MSD is shifting the
primary focus to innovation. The One Water
partnership creates millions of dollars of shared
services opportunities each year, but, future opportunities exist for Louisville Water and MSD
in revenue growth and efficiencies through
innovation initiatives such as regionalization,
advanced technology and new business opportunities. To help lead this work, Kimberly Reed
was named Chief Innovation Officer. Reed is
working for MSD but will lead any joint One
Water innovation efforts (Reed previously led
the shared service efforts).
Additionally, Louisville Water’s collaboration with
HomeServe grew by 9.5 percent with revenue
of $3.5 million. In 2019 HomeServe completed
11,938 repairs with a 4.8 (out of 5) customer satisfaction rating. In an effort to provide improved
service offerings to our customers, a new ‘Total
Home Warranty’ product was launched in the
fall. HomeServe also donated $12,000 to the
Louisville Water Foundation.

} President & CEO Spencer Bruce shows

employees a Water Dog pump prototype.

} Pure Spout™ is a filter

that removes lead from
drinking fountains.
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FINANCIAL VIABILITY
HISTORICAL REVIEW
(000s)

2015

2016

2017

Water Revenue

$ 159,965

$ 162,299

$ 167,862

Other Operating Revenue

$ 14,421

$ 15,541

$

Operating Expenses*

$ 122,672

GASB 68/75 Pension/OPEB
Actuarial Adjustment

$

Net Non-Operating Expenses

$

Net Income before Distributions
and Contributions

$ 42,488

2018

2019

$ 175,029

$ 182,053

16,703

$16,929

$ 18,315

$ 125,493

$ 130,474

$ 137,624

$ 145,829

2,923

$

3,595

$

7,889

$

8,531

$ 10,467

(6,303)

$

(7,497 )

$

(7,296)

$

(4,751)

$

$ 41,255

$ 38,906

$ 41,052

(5,458)

$ 38,614

*Does not include GASB 68/75 Pension/OPEB actuarial adjustment.

OPERATIONS
(amount in millions of gallons)

Water Delivered to Mains
(Net System Delivery)
Average Daily Pumpage
Maximum Daily Pumpage
Percent of Water Metered

2015

2016

2017

44,122
121
162
79%

42,229
115
145
79%

42,723
117
161
79%

TOTAL CONSUMPTION
(in billion gallons)

2019

33.4

2018

33.8

2017

33.4

2016

33.5

2015

34.6

30

17| Louisville Water

32

2018

2019

43,570
119
152
78%

43,623
119
159
77%

LOUISVILLE WATER’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE was sound in 2019, with strong
growth of 4.4 percent in Operating Revenue. However, net income was less than 2018,
as a result of a GASB 68 Pension Actuarial Adjustment for 2019 that was the highest ever
recorded by Louisville Water. Excluding the impact of this actuarial adjustment, net income
actually increased. Total shareholder value provided to Louisville Metro through the dividend and free water service was $37.7 million, up from $37.2 million in 2018.
Water consumption fell by 1.1 percent in 2019 to 33.4 billion gallons, with the commercial
and industrial categories driving the decline. Water consumption in residential and irrigation categories significantly lagged 2018 through mid-year from extremely wet weather.
However, an extended period of very hot, dry weather in late summer and early fall lead to
a surge in water sales in those categories, offsetting the earlier shortfall. Along with wholesale water sales, alternative lines of revenue are a key component in our strategy to offset
ongoing declines in retail water consumption. Revenue growth from cross connection,
home warranty, sewer billing, and consulting services drove an overall increase in Other
Operating Revenue of 8.2 percent in 2019.
Operating Expenses were up 6.9 percent in 2019. The majority of the increase came from
higher Operating and Maintenance Expenses, Depreciation Expense, and GASB 68 Pension Actuarial Adjustment. Two areas account for a higher than typical increase in Operating and Maintenance Expenses. First, the extended period of extremely hot, dry weather
resulted in river conditions that required more chemicals in the treatment process, and
market prices of those chemicals were up substantially in 2019. Second, workers compensation claims costs were high in 2019 due to an accident involving two of our employees,
one of whom passed away.
Louisville Water continued to invest significant dollars in our infrastructure and technology,
spending $93.1 million on its capital program in 2019, second only to 2018, which was a
record-setting year. Three projects in 2019 accounted for a combined 17 percent of capital
funds spent: installation of a standby generator at the Crescent Hill Water Treatment Plant,
the second phase of the Work and Asset Management program, and the final phase of
the Eastern Parkway Project. Looking to the future, Louisville Water issued $155.5 million
in bonds in 2019, $88 million of which will support capital expenditures in coming years.
Wholesale water sales and alternative revenue streams will continue to play a pivotal role
in offsetting declines in retail water sales. In 2020, we will have a full year of delivering
water to Shelbyville Water, which came online at the end of 2019, and we will continue to
explore and develop new regional opportunities. Revenue from innovative new products,
services, and partnerships will also be critical to enhancing Louisville Water’s revenue stability and protecting our long-term financial viability.

34
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FINANCIAL VIABILITY
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE—OPERATIONS
SALE OF WATER

AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL MONTHLY WATER BILL

OTHER OPERATION REVENUE

$25.0

$19.0

$18.8

$14.3

(based upon average usage of 4,000 gallons per month)
Number of customers
at December 31
2019
2018

Consumption - ytd
gallons (000s)
2019
2018

Revenue - ytd
(in 000s)
2019
2018

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Irrigation
Fire Services
Wholesale
Total

252,133
23,183
435
13,291
4,671
9
293,722

250,056
23,087
425
13,202
4,619
8
291,397

12,392,387
11,716,689
3,727,692
2,115,214
52,150
2,460,061
32,464,193

12,563,081
11,928,355
3,960,879
1,762,530
54,023
2,465,594
32,734,462

$

Public Fire Hydrants
Metro Govt
Total
Grand Totals

24,603
637
25,240
318,962

24,448
637
25,085
316,482

955,717
995,717
33,419,910

1,057,088
1,057,088
33,791,550

14,781
3,925
18,706
$ 182,053

2019 WATER REVENUE

74,852
53,846
12,369
12,793
3,600
5,887
163,347

$

72,431
52,076
12,449
10,707
3,451
5,734
156,848

14,143
4,038
18,181
$ 175,029

$12.5

2% Pvt. Fire Service
7% Irrigation

$14.4

$15.5

$16.7

$16.9

$18.3

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

$9.5

$20.11

$20.81

$21.51

$22.25

$23.16

$6.3

$0.0
3% Wholesale
2% Metro Govt.
8% Fire Hydrants

(in millions)

$4.8

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

$0.0

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS TO LOUISVILLE METRO
(in millions)

$40.0

$37.1

$36.8

$36.4

$37.2

$37.7

7% Industrial

$30.0

^

Water and Fire Service Provided
in Lieu of Taxes

30% Commercial
41% Residential

$16.7

$17.0

$17.4

$18.2

$18.7

$20.4

$19.8

$19.0

$19.0

$19.0

$20.0

$10.0
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^

$0.0

Dividends Declared

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019
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FINANCIAL VIABILITY
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE—CAPITAL
TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAM AND EXPENDITURES
(in millions)

$140
6%

Infrastructure Renewal

53%

40%
17%

Growth-Related Improvements
New Technology

36%

2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

6%

2020 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

$94.8

$96.6

$107.7

$111.0

$109.0

$83.7

$69.7

$83.2

$104.8

$93.1

2016

2017

2018

2019

$80
$60
$40

CONTRIBUTIONS IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION

Capital Program

$100

37%

Self-Financing Improvements

4%

$120

Expenditures

2015

(in millions)

$20

CAPITAL BIDS—ESTIMATES VERSUS ACTUAL CONTRACTS
(in millions)

$15

2019 Actual Contracts
2019 Bid Estimates

$10

2018 Actual Contracts

$9.4

$10.3

$10.4

$10.8

2018 Bid Estimates

$12.1

2017 Actual Contracts
2017 Bid Estimates

$5

2016 Actual Contracts
2016 Bid Estimates

0

2015 Actual Contracts

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2015 Bid Estimates

$0.0
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$17.5

$37.8
$41.5
$20.3
$27.8
$53.7
$61.8
$28.3
$29.0
$28.7
$27.1

$35.0

$52.5

$70.0
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Board of Water Works
Louisville Water Company
Louisville, Kentucky

on the financial statements of the Company in our report dated June 3, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018 is consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.
Required Supplementary Information

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Louisville Water Company (the “Company”), a
component unit of the Louisville/Jefferson County Metro Government, as of and for the year ended December
31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Company’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Louisville Water Company as of December 31, 2019, and the changes in its financial position and its
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the schedule of the Company’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, the schedule
of the Company’s proportionate share of the net other postemployment benefits (“OPEB”) liability, the schedule
of the Company’s pension contributions, and the schedule of the Company’s OPEB contributions as listed in the
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Louisville Water Company’s basic financial statements. The supplemental schedule of investments,
summarized schedule of bond issues, schedule of outstanding bond indebtedness and annual debt service
requirements, and schedule of operating and maintenance expenses are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The supplemental schedule of investments, summarized schedule of bond issues, schedule of outstanding bond
indebtedness and annual debt service requirements, and schedule of operating and maintenance expenses
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the supplemental schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Matters
Prior-Year Comparative Information
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not at the
level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. We have
previously audited the Company’s 2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion
23| Louisville Water

Crowe LLP
Louisville, Kentucky
May 21, 2020
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M A N A G E M E N T ’ S D I S C U S S I O N A N D A N A LY S I S
The following management’s discussion and analysis of Louisville Water Company’s (the “Company” or “Louisville Water”) financial performance provides an overview of the Company’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2019 as compared with the prior year.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This annual financial report consists of four parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Financial Statements,
Required Supplementary Information and Supplementary Information. The Financial Statements also include
notes that provide additional details and are an integral part of the statements. The Supplementary Information
further explains and supports the information within the Financial Statements.
The Financial Statements of the Company report information using accounting methods similar to those used
by private-sector water utility companies, except for the reporting of contributions in aid of construction, equity
capital and retained earnings. These statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the
Company’s activities.
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Company’s assets and liabilities. It provides information about
the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations owed to outside entities and
individuals (liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of Louisville Water and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Company.
All of the current year revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the Company’s operations over the past year and can be
used to help determine whether the Company has successfully met its financial objectives, recovered all of its
costs through its water rates and other charges, increased its net position and maintained credit-worthiness.
The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the Company’s cash receipts and cash payments,
along with net changes in cash resulting from operating, financing and investing activities. The statement provides information on the sources and uses of cash and the changes in the balance of cash during the year.

Summary of 2019 Performance
The Company’s Operating Revenue increased by $8.4 million or 4.4% in 2019. Declines in residential, commercial and industrial water consumption were partially offset by an increase in irrigation, and as a result, the decline
in overall water consumption was held to 1.1%. The small magnitude of the decline in consumption, along with
the stabilizing influence provided by fixed service charges, resulted in an overall increase in water revenue of
4%, a level essentially equal to the rate increase implemented for 2019. Alternative revenue streams continue
to be a key strategy in replacing revenue lost as a result of declining retail water consumption. In 2019, Other
Operating Revenue grew by 8.2%. Operating expense increased by 6.9%, with GASB 68 and 75 Actuarial Adjustments being a key factor in the magnitude of that increase. As a result, Net Operating Revenue declined
by $1.7 million for the year. Excluding the impact of the GASB 68 and 75 Actuarial Adjustments, Net Operating
Revenue grew by $206,000.
Net income before distributions and contributions totaled $38.6 million in 2019. The resulting dividend of $19.0
million, combined with free water and fire protection valued at $18.7 million, provided a total shareholder value
of $37.7 million, a 1.3% increase over 2018.
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Financial Highlights
• Total Net Position increased by $31.7 million, or 3.3% primarily due to funds generated from operations, net
of dividend paid to the Company’s shareholder.
• Operating Revenues increased by $8.4 million, or 4.4%, due to a water rate increase of 3.9% effective January 1, 2019, and growth in other operating revenue. Water sales in 2019 of 33.4 billion gallons was down
372 million gallons, or 1.1% lower than 2018 sales of 33.8 billion gallons.
• Operating Expenses increased by $10.1 million, or 6.9%, primarily as a result of increases in Operating and
Maintenance Expense of $4.7 million, Depreciation and Amortization Expense of $2.4 million and GASB 68
Actuarial Adjustment of $2.6 million.
• Net Non-Operating Expense increased by $708,000, or 14.9%, due to lower interest earned on funds invested.
• Net Income before Distributions and Contributions decreased by $2.4 million, or 5.9%.
• Dividends Paid and Payable were essentially flat at $19 million, as the three-year average of adjusted net
income utilized for the dividend calculation did not change materially.

Statement of Net Position
Total Net Position increased by $31.7 million, or 3.3%, in 2019 (see Figure 1). The largest portion of Net Position is Net Utility Plant, which increased by $47.8 million in 2019 as a result of additional investment in capital
assets. The capital assets were funded by the 2015 and 2019 bond issues, cash generated from operations and
Contributions in Aid of Construction from developers, customers, and governmental agencies. Current Assets
increased by $25.3 million in 2019, with restricted, expendable bond funds up nearly $24 million as a result of
the 2019 bond issuance. A portion of the proceeds from the 2019 bond issuance were also placed in long-term
investments, resulting in an overall increase in Noncurrent Assets of $37.2 million. Current Liabilities fell by $3.4
million in 2019, while Long-term Liabilities increased by $78.3 million. The increase in Long-term Liabilities was a
result of an increase in the Net Pension Liability of $11.7 million and balances related to the 2019 bond issuance
by $67.8 million.

Figure 1 - Condensed Statement of Net Position
2019

Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Net Utility Plant
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
of Resources
Total Net Position

2018

Difference

Percent

$ 121,140,142
74,649,687
23,456,912
1,260,599,805

$ 95,880,250
37,409,831
24,513,501
1,212,780,234

$ 25,259,892
37,239,856
(1,056,589 )
47,819,571

26.3%
99.5%
(4.3%)
3.9%

1,479,846,546
46,348,361
442,618,712
9,357,956

1,370,583,816
49,701,110
364,350,904
6,718,698

109,262,730
(3,352,749 )
78,267,808
2,639,258

8.0%
(6.7%)
21.5%
39.3%

498,325,029
$ 981,521,517

420,770,712
$ 949,813,104

77,554,317
$ 31,708,413

18.4%
3.3%
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Operating Revenues grew by $8.4 million, or 4.4%, in 2019 (see Figure 2) due to higher water revenue attributable to increased rates and growth in non-water revenue. Total water consumption decreased by 372 million
gallons, or 1.1%, in 2019. Water–saving fixtures, appliances and equipment, in both residences and businesses, continue to drive declining water consumption, though the Company has seen some stabilization in retail
consumption over the past several years. Louisville Water’s regionalization strategy has been instrumental in
offsetting a portion of lost retail consumption. Wholesale consumption has grown as a percentage of overall
consumption every year over the past decade, both as a result of increased consumption by existing wholesale
customers and new customers coming on line. Other operating revenue climbed by $1.4 million or 8.2% in
2019, as a result of growth in revenue from the home warranty program, sewer billing services for other utilities
and the cross connection program.
The key components of Operating Expenses are: Operating and Maintenance Expenses; GASB Pension and
OPEB Actuarial Adjustments; Depreciation and Amortization; Water and Fire Service Provided in Lieu of Taxes;
and Loss from Sale and Salvage of Retired Assets. Operating Expenses increased $10.1 million, or 6.9% in 2019
primarily as a result of increases in Operating and Maintenance Expense, Depreciation and Amortization and
GASB 68 Pension Actuarial Adjustment. Operating and Maintenance Expenses increased $4.7 million due to
higher labor and labor related costs, power and chemicals, materials and supplies, contractual services, equipment maintenance and insurance claims, offset by reductions in bad debt and fleet costs. Depreciation and
Amortization increased by $2.4 million due to additional investment in capital assets.
Net Non-Operating Expense (non-operating expense less non-operating income) increased by $708,000 or
14.9% in 2019, due to lower earnings on funds invested. The dollar amount invested was less than the prior
year as the Company continued throughout the year to spend down funds on the capital program in advance of
the bond issuance which occurred at the end of October.
Net Income before Distributions and Contributions decreased by $2.4 million, or 5.9%, in 2019. Excluding the
impact of the GASB 68 and 75 Actuarial Adjustments, the decrease was much smaller at $502,000. Higher Operating and Maintenance Expenses and Depreciation were mostly offset by revenue from the water sales and
growth in Other Operating Revenue. The formula for computing the dividend, as established by covenant in the
Series 2009 Bond Resolution (the Master Bond Resolution), is 50% of the average of current year and prior two
fiscal years’ net income after certain stated adjustments. Three-year averaging is used to compensate for the
volatility in net income that results principally from the unpredictability of water consumption tied to the effects
of weather. Dividends Paid and Payable for 2019 was essentially flat at $19 million.
Contributions in Aid of Construction are comprised of: pipeline contributions from developers for water main extensions and from governmental agencies for water main relocations; service installation fees from customers;
apportionment warrant fees and tapping fees from customers to extend water service to unserved areas; and
system development charges from customers for growth-related expansion. The level of capital contributions
varies from year to year and is affected by economic cycles. These types of projects are fully funded or nearly
fully funded by outside entities in advance of construction. Contributions in Aid of Construction increased by $1.3
million, or 12.1%, from the previous year.
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Figure 2 - Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
2019

Operating Revenue
Operating Expenses
Net Operating Revenue
Net Non-Operating Expense
Net Income Before Distributions and
Contributions
Dividends Paid and Payable
Contributions in Aid of Construction
Change in Net Position
Net Position, beginning of year
Net Position, end of year

2018

Difference

Percent

$ 200,368,668
156,295,983
44,072,685
5,458,426

$ 191,958,588
146,155,730
45,802,858
4,750,822

$ 8,410,080
10,140,253
(1,730,173 )
707,604

4.4%
6.9%
(3.8%)
14.9%

38,614,259
19,019,796
12,113,950
31,708,413
949,813,104
$ 981,521,517

41,052,036
18,997,197
10,801,650
32,856,489
916,956,615
$ 949,813,104

(2,437,777 )
22,599
1,312,300
(1,148,076 )
32,856,489
$ 31,708,413

(5.9%)
0.1%
12.1%
(3.5%)
3.6%
3.3%

Statement of Cash Flows
Cash at the end of 2019 was $20.2 million higher than at the end of 2018 (see Figure 3).
• Cash from Operating Activities was $102.5 million, increasing by $6.1 million as compared to the prior year.
More cash was received from customers compared to 2018, while cash paid to employees, suppliers and
others were relatively unchanged.
• Cash used by Capital and Related Financing Activities was $19.9 million in 2019, down from $118.8 million
in 2018. The overall increase of $99 million was a result of proceeds from the 2019 bond issuance of $88.7
million and a reduction in cash expended on the acquisition and construction of utility plant of $9.4 million.
• Cash used by Investing Activities was $45.6 million in 2019, compared to cash provided of $47.8 million in
2018. Late in 2017, the Company invested a significant amount of funds that subsequently matured in 2018,
providing a higher level of cash inflow. In 2019, cash proceeds from the 2019 bond issuance flowed into
investments and bond reserves, resulting in a reduction in cash.
In addition to the amounts held in unrestricted Cash and Investments, Louisville Water also held funds in restricted capital and bond related accounts and reserves totaling $59.6 million, reported as part of Restricted,
Expendable Bond Accounts in Current Assets and Restricted Reserves in Noncurrent Assets on the Statement
of Net Position and described in Note 3.

Figure 3 - Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
2019

Cash Flows From
Operating Activities
Non-Capital Financing Activities
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Investing Activities
Net Change in Cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

$102,461,615
(16,818,317 )
(19,851,646 )
(45,618,575 )
20,173,077
15,096,655
$ 35,269,732

2018

$ 96,348,352
(19,651,325)
(118,814,404 )
47,833,677
5,716,300
9,380,355
$ 15,096,655

Difference

Percent

$ 6,113,263
2,833,008
98,962,758
(93,452,252 )
14,456,777
5,716,300
$ 20,173,077

6.3%
14.4%
83.3%
(195.4%)
252.9%
60.9%
133.6%
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Capital Assets

Figure 5 - Debt Service Coverage

Louisville Water uses a five-year Capital Improvement Program (“CIP”) that is updated annually. Every five years,
a twenty-year facility plan is prepared by our Consulting Engineer. The most recent Facilities Plan was prepared
by CH2M in the latter part of 2015 and was adopted by the Board of Water Works in January 2016. The Company is currently developing the next Facilities Plan. Development of the CIP is based on the Company’s current
Facilities Plan and recommendations from the biennial inspection of facilities. The CIP also identifies anticipated
capital expenditures for a total of five years. The Company’s current Facilities Plan covers the years from 2016
through 2035. The CIP approved by the Board of Water Works in late 2019 shows the Company plans to invest
$517.6 million in improvements during 2020-2024.
The Company spent $91.5 million on its capital program in 2019, with the largest portion being spent on infrastructure renewal. As shown in Figure 4, total investment in Utility Plant was $1.3 billion as of the end of 2019,
an increase of $47.8 million from the prior year. Infrastructure renewal projects account for 40.5% of the planned
2020 capital expenditures. In 2020, the Company will continue to make significant investments in main replacement and rehabilitation, transmission condition assessment and rehabilitation and technology. Please see Note
6 for capital assets detail.

Figure 4 - Condensed Summary of Capital Assets
2019

Capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Capital assets, net
Capital assets not being depreciated
Utility plant, net

2018

$ 1,756,910,230 $ 1,656,178,440
(605,787,354 )
(566,913,150)
1,151,122,876
1,089,265,290
109,476,929
123,514,944
$ 1,260,599,805 $ 1,212,780,234

Difference

$ 100,731,790
(38,874,203 )
61,857,587
(14,038,016 )
$ 47,819,571

Percent

6.1%
(6.9%)
5.7%
(11.4%)
3.9%

Debt Administration
As of December 31, 2019, the Company has principal outstanding of $52.4 million for the Series 2014A Bonds,
$109.4 million for the Series 2015 Bonds, $155.5 million for the Series 2019 Bonds and $1.2 million for the KIA
loan for a total of $318.5 million. In October 2019, the Company issued $155.5 million in tax-exempt bonds (Series 2019). As part of this transaction, the Company refunded $29.5 million of the remaining outstanding Series
2009A Bonds and $58.2 million of the remaining outstanding Series 2009B Bonds. Both Series 2009A Bonds
and Series 2009B Bonds were fully redeemed on November 15, 2019. The Series 2014A Bonds are not insured
and are callable beginning in 2022. The Series 2015 Bonds are not insured and are callable beginning in 2025.
The Series 2019 Bonds are not insured and are callable beginning in 2029. All the Company’s bonds carry ratings
of Aaa from Moody’s and ratings of AAA from Standard & Poor’s. The ratings on all of the Company’s previously
issued bonds were affirmed in October 2019, concurrent with the assignment of Aaa/AAA to its newly issued
Series 2019 bonds. The Company’s debt rating is among the highest in the United States for water utility revenue bonds. As shown in Figure 5, the Company’s debt service coverage was 2.07 times in 2019, an increase
from the prior year. Please see Notes 7 and 8 for long-term debt detail.
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2019

Income Available for
Debt Service
Current Aggregate Net
Debt Service
Debt Service Coverage Times

2018

$ 58,633,722

$ 58,257,092

28,377,580
2.07

29,871,220
1.95

Difference

Percent

$ 376,630

0.6%

(1,493,640 )
0.12

(5.0%)
6.2%

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
Management believes that the nationwide trend of declining water consumption will continue to be a challenging issue. Management has implemented strategies to enhance revenue growth via both traditional and non-traditional avenues to offset the negative impact of lower water sales. The Company has had notable success in
its regionalization efforts, through additional sales to existing customers and the execution of new wholesale
contracts. Management will continue to actively pursue these opportunities. The Company has also had positive
results with non-traditional revenue initiatives. Management will seek new growth opportunities that capitalize
on our existing competencies, expertise and strengths, focusing on innovative new products and services.
Management believes that the Company’s most challenging issue in 2020 will be dealing with the potential operational and financial impacts of COVID-19. The magnitude of the impact is unknown at this time and depends
on the ultimate duration of the pandemic and its impact on the economy.
Management believes that the 2020 Budget adequately addresses all revenue requirements, which are defined
as the summation of the operation, maintenance and capital costs that a utility must recover during the time
period for which the rates will be in place. Water rates increased for retail water service by 3.5% on January 1,
2020. Water rates for wholesale customers are recommended to increase on July 1, 2020. Rate changes for five
wholesale customers are subject to approval by the Kentucky Public Service Commission.

Computation of Stockholder’s Equity
Stockholder’s equity for Louisville Water is no longer published in the audited Financial Statements following
adoption of GASB 34 in 2002. Using the common stock, retained earnings, and total equity capital reported in
the 2001 audited Financial Statements and using Income before Distributions and Contributions less Dividends
Paid and Payable from audited Financial Statements for subsequent years, Figure 6 below shows management’s
computation of stockholder’s equity for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Figure 6 - Computation of Stockholder’s Equity
2019

Total Equity Capital Beginning of Year
Plus: Income Before
Distributions and Contributions
Less: Dividends Paid and
Payable
Total Equity Capital - End of Year
Less: Cumulative Deposits to
Infrastructure Replacement Reserve
Stockholder’s Equity Eligible
for Return Computation

2018

$ 618,236,030

$ 596,181,191

38,614,259

41,052,036

19,019,796
637,830,493

Difference

Percent

$ 22,054,839

3.7%

(2,437,777 )

(5.9%)

18,997,197
618,236,030

22,599
19,594,463

0.1%
3.2%

54,178,244

53,428,244

750,000

1.4%

$ 583,652,249

$ 564,807,786

$ 18,844,461

3.3%
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Net Income before Distributions and Contributions for 2019 was $38,614,259. Certain stated adjustments are
made to Net Income before Distributions and Contributions to arrive at Adjusted Net Income, which is utilized
for the dividend and return on equity computations. For 2019, Adjusted Net Income was $37,890,462. The return
on equity earned by Louisville Water in 2019 was 6.5%.

Comparative Analysis of Financial Results

Contacting the Company’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, creditors and stockholder with a general
overview of the Company’s finances and to show the Company’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Office of the Vice-President, Finance – Treasurer at Louisville Water Company, 550 South Third Street, Louisville, KY 40202.

To optimize long-term financial viability, Louisville Water management plans for and monitors five groups of
financial metrics: liquidity, capitalization, coverage, profitability and dividend payout. Figure 7 below shows management’s computation of certain financial ratios within each of these groups of metrics.

Figure 7 - Comparative Analysis of Financial Results
Liquidity
		

Access Readily Available Assets to
2018
2019
Meet Near-Term Obligations			

Days of Funded
Operations

(Cash + Short-Term Liquid Inv.) /
(O&M Expense / 365)

Capitalization
		

Debt to
Net Utility Plant
Debt to
Capitalization

317

325

Reliance on Debt Financing for
2018
2019
Capital Investments			

2020
Budget

Target

407

>250

2020
Budget

Target

Debt / Net Utility Plant

22.22%

25.27%

23.38%

<35%

Debt / (Debt + Net Position)

22.10%

24.50%

23.01%

<24%

2020
Budget

Target

Coverage
Capacity to Make Debt Service Payments
2018
2019
					

Debt Service
Income Available for Debt Service /				
Coverage
Debt Service				
			
1.95
2.07
2.04
Section 603 Rate
Net Revenue / Max Agg.
Covenant
Debt Service
291%
290%
312%
Debt Service
(O&M Expense + Debt Service) /
Safety Margin
(Operating Revenue + Non		
Operating Revenue)
44.18%
44.80%
44.64%
Profitability
Profitability of the Company
2018
2019
					

Return on
(Net Income – Infrastructure Reserve
Equity
Replacement (“IRR”) + Bond Reserve
		
Adjustment) / Stockholder Equity
		
Eligible for Return
Return on Net
Net Income / Net Utility Plant
Utility Plant		
Net Profit
Net Income / Operating Revenue
Margin		
Dividend Payout
		

Dividend Payout
		
Total Transfers
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>130%
>30%

2020
Budget

Target

7.14%

6.49%

6.66%

>7.5%

3.38%

3.06%

3.16%

>3.5%

21.39%

19.27%

19.22%

>20%

Measurement of Distribution
2018
2019
of Profit as a Dividend			

Dividends Declared /
(Net Income - IRR)
(Water in Lieu of Taxes +
Dividends) / Operating Revenue

Current
Target
>2.0

2020
Budget

47.28%

50.23%

51.39%

19.37%

18.84%

19.08%
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S T AT E M E N T O F N E T P O S I T I O N

S T AT E M E N T O F N E T P O S I T I O N

December 31, 2019
(With Summarized Financial Information as of December 31, 2018)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash
Short-term liquid investments
		 Cash and short-term liquid investments
Accounts receivable, net
Contracts receivable, current portion
Materials and supplies
Restricted, expendable bond accounts
Other current assets
Accrued interest receivable
		Total Current Assets
Utility Plant, net of accumulated depreciation
Noncurrent Assets
Investments
Restricted reserves
Non-utility property
Unamortized bond issuance costs
Contracts receivable
Preliminary engineering charges
Prepaid regulatory assets
		Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension
OPEB
Net loss on refunding of debt
		Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

2019

2018

$ 35,269,732
38,595,236
73,864,968

$ 15,096,655
52,880,293
67,976,948

11,747,881
550,752
5,754,970
26,618,995
2,343,838
258,738
121,140,142

12,533,216
529,087
6,800,448
2,916,543
4,342,778
781,230
95,880,250

1,260,599,805

1,212,780,234

34,968,113
32,939,108
2,352,120
1,627,990
584,889
424,229
1,753,238
74,649,687

29,979,594
2,436,284
1,519,694
692,924
279,507
2,501,828
37,409,831

1,456,389,634

1,346,070,315

15,266,720
7,668,379
521,813
23,456,912

14,413,312
5,890,261
4,209,928
24,513,501

$ 1,479,846,546

$ 1,370,583,816

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Sewer collections (contra)
Customer deposits and advances
Tax collections payable
Accrued interest payable
Contracts payable, retainage percentage
Accrued payroll
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Insurance reserve
Bonds and notes payable, current portion
		Total Current Liabilities

$

13,441,765
1,214,980
6,888,585
354,160
1,910,534
2,242,536
555,280
1,407,758
2,570,309
15,762,454
46,348,361

2018

$

13,259,220
2,089,684
7,321,683
498,010
1,361,064
2,852,714
496,995
1,428,364
1,612,744
18,780,632
49,701,110

Long-Term Liabilities
Customer advances for construction
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Unamortized debt premium and discount
Bonds and notes payable, less current portion
		Total Long-Term Liabilities

302,900
88,788,390
21,229,097
29,545,080
302,753,245
442,618,712

302,900
77,085,962
22,471,844
13,804,499
250,685,699
364,350,904

Total Liabilities

488,967,073

414,052,014

1,806,460
7,551,496
9,357,956

2,453,269
4,265,429
6,718,698

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

498,325,029

420,770,712

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Restricted, expendable – debt service
		Total Net Position

932,641,039
12,917,843
35,962,635
981,521,517

926,336,366
(9,419,399)
32,896,137
949,813,104

$ 1,479,846,546

$ 1,370,583,816

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension
OPEB
		Total Deferred Inflows Resources

		Total Liabilities and Net Position
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S T AT E M E N T O F C A S H F L O W S

S T AT E M E N T O F R E V E N U E S , E X P E N S E S A N D C H A N G E S I N N E T P O S I T I O N
Year ended December 31, 2019
(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

Revenues
Operating revenues

Year ended December 31, 2019
(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)
2019

2018

$ 200,368,668

$ 191,958,588

82,983,534
10,202,211
265,202
41,378,676
18,732,033
2,734,327
156,295,983

78,292,253
7,588,114
943,202
39,016,455
18,191,194
2,124,512
146,155,730

Net Operating Revenue

44,072,685

45,802,858

Non-Operating Income (Expense)
Interest income
Building America Bond refund
Interest expense
		Net Non-Operating Expense

1,359,299
1,111,599
(7,929,324 )
(5,458,426 )

1,798,406
1,236,130
(7,785,358)
(4,750,822)

Net Income Before Distributions and Contributions

38,614,259

41,052,036

Operating Expenses
Operating and maintenance expenses
GASB 68 pension actuarial adjustment
GASB 75 OPEB actuarial adjustment
Depreciation and amortization
Water and fire service provided in lieu of taxes
Loss from sale and salvage of retired assets
Total Operating Expenses

Distributions and Contributions
Dividends paid and payable
Contributions in aid of construction
		Total Distributions and Contributions, Net

(19,019,796 )
12,113,950
(6,905,846 )

(18,997,197 )
10,801,650
(8,195,547)

Change in Net Position

31,708,413

32,856,489

949,813,104

916,956,615

$ 981,521,517

$ 949,813,104

Net Position, beginning of year
Net Position, end of year

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and others
Cash paid to employees for services or benefits
		Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities
Dividends paid to stockholder

2018

$181,114,168
(47,863,972)
(30,788,581)
102,461,615

$174,959,506
(47,622,617)
(30,988,537)
96,348,352

(16,818,317)

(19,651,325)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of utility plant
Acquisition of non-utility property
Bond proceeds
Contributions in aid of construction
Customer advances for construction
Preliminary engineering charges
Principal paid
Interest paid
		Net Cash Used in Capital and Related
Financing Activities

(90,300,797)
(1,155,775)
88,725,480
11,590,142
(144,722)
(18,780,635)
(9,785,339)

(99,656,762)
(582,963)
11,573,292
(158,614)
78,934
(19,528,847)
(10,539,444)

(19,851,646)

(118,814,404)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment – purchases
Investment – maturities
Restricted cash reserves
Restricted, expendable bond accounts
Interest received
		Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities

(96,277,899)
75,594,843
(2,959,514)
(23,702,452)
1,726,447
(45,618,575)

(33,727,976)
80,493,700
(491,414)
(192,805)
1,752,172
47,833,677

Net change in cash

20,173,077

5,716,300

Cash, beginning of year

15,096,655

9,380,355

$ 35,269,732

$ 15,096,655

Cash, end of year

35| Louisville Water

2019

2019 Annual Report | 36

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T AT E M E N T S

S T AT E M E N T O F C A S H F L O W S

Reconciliation of Net Operating Revenue
to Net Cash Provided by Operating activities
Net operating revenue
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenue
to cash provided by operating activities
		Depreciation
		Amortization
		 Loss from sale and salvage of retired assets
		 Changes in current assets and liabilities
			Accounts receivable
			 Materials and supplies
			 Other current assets
			 Other deferred charges
			Accounts payable
			 Accounts payable, sewer collections
			Customer deposits
			 Tax collections payable
			 Accrued vacation and sick leave
			Accrued payroll
			 Net pension liability
			 Net OPEB liability
			 Deferred outflows of resources – pension
			 Deferred outflows of resources – OPEB
			 Deferred inflows of resources – pension
			 Deferred inflows of resources – OPEB
			Insurance reserve

2019

2018

$ 44,072,685

$ 45,802,858

41,744,332
1,339,857
2,734,327

39,646,630
767,044
2,124,512

785,335
1,045,478
(202,539 )
748,590
182,545
(874,704 )
(433,098 )
(143,850 )
(20,606 )
58,285
11,702,428
(1,242,747 )
(2,557,797 )
(1,917,951 )
1,057,580
3,425,900
957,565

243,738
218,552
(331,935)
(547,729)
(635,800)
500,097
448,277
26,809
(382,492)
80,016
4,569,219
(2,434,324)
3,784,048
416,115
(765,153)
2,961,411
(143,541)

				 Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$102,461,615

$ 96,348,352

Supplemental Information
Non-cash capital and related financing activities
		 Accrued utility plant acquisitions
		 Refunding portion of new bonds

$ 3,400,721
$ 87,710,000

$ 6,049,945
$
-

NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of the Business: Louisville Water Company (the “Company” or “Louisville Water”) is a provider of
retail water and related services to residential, commercial, industrial and fire customers in Jefferson County
and parts of Oldham and Bullitt Counties in Kentucky. The Company also provides wholesale water service to
nine utility customers located in Bullitt, Nelson, Shelby and Spencer Counties in Kentucky and has contracts to
operate water treatment facilities in southern Indiana and Fort Knox, Kentucky. Throughout its 160-year history,
the Company has engaged the communities it serves through philanthropic and charitable outreach activities,
directly contributing to improving the health and well-being of those communities.
The Company is a component unit of Louisville/Jefferson County Metro Government (“Louisville Metro”). The
Company is a legally separate entity that provides water utility services to the residents of the Louisville metropolitan area and charges fees for those services. It is shown as a discretely presented Component Unit because
the Metro Government is the sole shareholder of Louisville Water’s stock, receives a quarterly dividend, and
the Mayor appoints the Company’s Board of Directors. Water and fire services valued at $18.7 million were provided to Metro Government in lieu of taxes during the year ended December 31, 2019. The Company remitted
$19,047,575 in dividends to Metro Government during Metro Government’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.
In 2014, the Company further demonstrated its commitment to the community by founding a nonprofit organization, the Louisville Water Foundation (the “Foundation”). The Foundation’s mission is to improve the health
and wellbeing of the communities it serves and around the world by providing water assistance and water education. The creation of a separate, nonprofit entity allows additional financial and/or in-kind support to flow into
the Foundation from a broad base of public and private sources. The related financial activity of the Foundation
is not deemed to be a component unit of the Company.
Basis of Presentation: The accompanying Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) for governmental organizations
reporting as a business-type activity and enterprise fund accounting, a type of proprietary fund. Business-type
activities are those activities that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods
and services. An enterprise fund is accounted for under the economic resource measurement focus and uses
the accrual basis of accounting which reports all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources, revenues, expenses, gains and losses. The Financial Statements have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting which allows for revenues to be recognized when earned and expenses to be
recorded when an obligation has been incurred.
Method of Accounting: The Company adopts common industry accounting policies for water utilities. Although
the Company is not subject to regulation, the accounts are maintained in accordance with the uniform system
of accounts prescribed by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, except with respect to
the treatment of gains and losses from the retirement or disposition of utility plant. The Company recognizes
gain or loss, including cost of removal, upon the retirement or disposition of utility plant rather than the transfer
of cost to accumulated depreciation, as provided by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners. Due to the election as a regulated operation under GASB 62, to meet industry accounting standards and
follow transactional intent, the Company uses, as applicable, Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 980,
Regulated Accounting.
Estimates in the Financial Statements: The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires, at times, management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Prior-Year Comparative Information: The Financial Statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Company’s
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, from which summarized information was derived.
Statements of Cash Flows: For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Company considers all unrestricted highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity of twelve months or less to be short-term investments. Significant noncash transactions during the year that were excluded from the Statement of Cash Flows
consisted of accrued utility plant acquisitions of $3,400,721 and $87,710,000 of debt related to the Series 2009A
and Series 2009B bond refunding.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements: The GASB has issued the following statements not yet required to be
adopted that the Company believes may be currently relevant to their operations and note disclosures.
• GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The objective of the Statement is to address
accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs) including establishing criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow
of resources for AROs.
• GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, issued January 2017. The objective of the Statement is to
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting
purposes and how those activities should be reported.

• GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The objective of this Statement is to
address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that result from the replacement of
an Interbank Offered Rate.
• GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related
to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs).
The Company’s management has not yet determined the effect, if any, these future statements will have on the
Company’s Financial Statements.
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: Accounts receivable are stated at the estimated
amount management expects to collect from outstanding customer accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on historical collection experience and a review of the status of existing water,
contract and miscellaneous receivables. See Note 2 for more information.
Inventory: Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the average cost.
Investments: Investments are reported at fair value with gains and losses included in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Gains or losses on dispositions are determined using the specific
identification method. Treasury securities with maturity of one year or less at the time of purchases are recorded
at amortized cost in accordance with GASB 72.

• GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of
financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.

Capitalized Interest: The Company follows the practice of capitalizing interest during construction on capital projects that are debt financed. Total interest cost of $10,026,674 was incurred during the year of which $2,097,350
was capitalized during 2019.

• GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. The objective of the Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government
financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which
liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt.

Utility Plant: Utility plant is stated at cost of acquisition or construction, including certain indirect costs. Direct
purchases with a unit cost of $2,500 or more and a useful life of greater than one year are capitalized. The
Company applies the straight-line method of depreciation to the estimated useful lives of the various classes of
depreciable property. The estimated useful lives of some significant asset categories are as follows:

• GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period.
The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about
capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period.
• GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No.
61. The objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial
statement information for certain component units.
• GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in
accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements.
The GASB has issued the following statements not yet required to be adopted that the Company believes are
not currently relevant to their operations and note disclosures.
• GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide
a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated
with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and
(3) related note disclosures.
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Buildings
Pipelines
Fire hydrants
Services
Meters
Equipment
Trucks and autos

50 to 100 years
65 to 100 years
50 years
40 years
15 years
5 to 10 years
5 years

Depreciation expense for 2019 was $41,844,250 of which $1,705,513 was allocated to other operating expenses.
Non-utility Property: Non-utility property is stated at cost of acquisition or construction, including certain indirect
costs. Direct purchases with a unit cost of $2,500 or more and a useful life of greater than one year are capitalized. The Company applies the straight-line method of depreciation to the estimated useful lives of the various
classes of depreciable property. Depreciation expense of non-utility plant was $1,239,939 for 2019.
Prepaid Regulatory Assets: The Company capitalizes and depreciates abandoned plant assets generally over five
to eight years. The prepaid regulatory assets have historical cost of $5,065,834. The carrying value, stated net of
depreciation, was $1,753,238 as of December 31, 2019.
Customer Deposits: The Company has implemented a security deposit policy for all customers applying for residential, commercial or industrial water service who: (i) have had a previous account in bad debt or bankruptcy
status; or (ii) have had a service disconnected due to nonpayment within the last three years of service; or (iii)
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have a utility score below the threshold set by the Company. The Company refunds the security deposit when:
(i) a customer closes the account; or (ii) the customer has paid their bill in a timely manner for three consecutive
years. Additionally, the Company charges a security deposit for temporary meters for construction. Total security
deposits at December 31, 2019 were $3,297,832.
The Company also requires customers to make a deposit for the cost of construction of pipelines and special services. Deposits are refundable to the extent the deposit is in excess of the construction cost. Total construction
deposits were $3,590,753 at December 31, 2019. All customer and security deposits are included as customer
deposits and advances in current liabilities on the Statement of Net Position.
Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave: Employees’ vested and accumulated vacation and sick leave is recorded as
a liability on the Statement of Net Position. Accrued vacation and sick leave balances were $1,407,758 as of
December 31, 2019.
Customer Advances for Construction: The customer advances for construction accounts reflect the anticipated
long-term liability for refunding construction costs based on future new service installations within certain time
limits up to 20 years. Once the refund period has expired, any balance is recorded as a contribution in aid of
construction in the Company’s Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Total customer
advances for construction at December 31, 2019 were $302,900.
Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”): For purposes of measuring the net pension and OPEB
liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB, and pension and OPEB
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the County Employees Retirement system (CERS) and
additions to and deductions from CERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by CERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources: Deferred outflows represent the consumption of resources that
are applicable to a future reporting period, but do not require any further exchange of goods or services. Deferred outflows of resources in the Company’s Financial Statements consist of the unamortized deferred loss
on refunding of debt and CERS pension and OPEB related unamortized balances. Deferred inflows of resources
consist of the CERS pension and OPEB related unamortized balances.
Debt and Bond Related Costs: Debt related policies include the following:
• Bonds payable are recorded at the principal amount outstanding, net of any applicable premium or discount.
• Original issue discounts and premiums on bonds are amortized as a component of interest expense using
the effective interest method over the lives of the bonds to which they relate.
• Refunding bonds outstanding, which have been refunded and economically defeased, are not included in
long-term debt. The related assets are not included in investments. The loss on refunding, which is the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt, is deferred outflow of
resources and amortized as a component of interest expense over the average remaining life of the old debt.
• Bond issue costs are capitalized and amortized over the life of the respective bond issue using the effective
interest method, pursuant to the election of regulatory operation under GASB 62, as they are deemed recoverable through future rates.
Contributed Capital and Construction Grants: Construction and acquisition of water lines and other facilities and
plants are financed, in part, from governmental grants and contributions in aid of construction from property
owners and developers. Governmental grants in aid of construction represent the portion of construction cost
incurred where paperwork has been submitted to the entity. These amounts are recorded as a receivable and
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revenues from contributions at the time the documentation is submitted. The revenues from contributions are
part of the change in net position.
Restricted and Unrestricted Funds: Restricted funds are externally reserved for the purpose of bond debt service, funding of capital expenditures and debt service reserves. Unrestricted funds are used to pay operating
expenses. When an expense or outlay is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted funds are available,
it is the Company’s practice to use revenue from operations to finance construction, then reimburse from restricted funds as needed. Restricted funds can be used to pay operating expenses in the case of an emergency
caused by some extraordinary occurrence, so characterized in a Certificate of an Authorized Officer filed with the
Trustee, and an insufficiency of moneys to the credit of the Operation Fund to meet such emergency.
Net Position: The Company classifies resources for accounting and reporting purposes into the following net
position categories:
• Net Investment in Capital Assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt and related
liabilities attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
• Restricted: Restricted net position includes two categories:
Nonexpendable - Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that they be maintained
permanently by the Company.
		

Expendable - Net position whose use by the Company is subject to externally imposed stipulations that
can be fulfilled by actions of the Company pursuant to those stipulations or that expire by the passage
of time.

• Unrestricted:
Net position whose use by the Company is not subject to externally imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net position may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the
Board of Water Works or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.
Operating / Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses: Operating Revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activities of the Company. These revenues include water service and commodity
charges, late and other water-related fees, contract operations and service line warranty fees, and compensation
for service provided to others. Operating expenses are expenses incurred through the activities of operating
and maintaining the Company, including depreciation, water provided in lieu of taxes, and loss on disposition of
assets. Non-operating revenues and expenses are comprised of investment and financing earnings and interest
cost.
Revenue: Operating revenue is recognized in the period in which billings are rendered to customers. The Company does not accrue revenue for water delivered but not billed.
Taxes: The Company, by virtue of its ownership by Louisville Metro, is exempt from taxation by federal, state
and local taxing authorities, however, the Company is liable for certain other taxes and provides water and fire
services in lieu of taxes to Louisville Metro. Tax expense, which includes water and fire service provided in lieu
of taxes, for 2019 was $18,732,033.
Union Employees: The Company has employees who are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. At
December 31, 2019, approximately 41% of the Company’s full-time employees were covered by the collective
bargaining agreement. This 7-year agreement expires on March 1, 2023.
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Subsequent Events: In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus surfaced in Wuhan, China, and has spread
around the world, with resulting business and social disruption. The coronavirus was declared a Public Health
Emergency of International Concern by the World Health Organization on January 30, 2020. The operations and
business results of the Company could be materially adversely affected. The extent to which the coronavirus
may impact business activity or investment results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of the
coronavirus and the actions required to contain the coronavirus or treat its impact, among others.

NOTE 2 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2019 include:
Water
Other
		
Allowance for doubtful accounts

$ 11,003,965
1,545,453
12,549,418
(801,537)

		

$ 11,747,881

NOTE 3 – 2009 MASTER BOND RESOLUTION FUNDS
The Company maintains a 2009 Master Bond Resolution (“Resolution”) that documents the legal requirements
for the outstanding bonds payable for the 2014A, 2015 and 2019 bond series. The following accounts and funds
are established by the Resolution:
Construction and Acquisition Fund: The Resolution establishes a Construction and Acquisition Fund. Individual
accounts are established, maintained and accounted for within this fund for each Series of Bonds. The Company
shall pay into such account amounts received from the proceeds of the sale of Bonds, to be applied to the cost
of construction or acquisition of capital projects and to the Cost of Issuance for the Series of Bonds. The Construction and Acquisition Fund is invested in government obligation mutual funds.
Bond Service Account: Except to the extent that the interest and principal are to be paid from other available
sources, the Company is required to deposit monthly, into the Trustee’s Bond Service Accounts, one-sixth of the
amount of the next succeeding interest payment on the Series 2014A, 2015 and 2019 Bonds outstanding and
one-twelfth of the next maturing principal of those related bonds. The Bond Service Accounts are invested in a
debt service fund agreement and government obligation mutual funds, each stated at fair value.
Bond Reserve Account: The Resolution requires that the Bond Reserve Account be established at one-half of
the highest future annual maximum aggregate debt service. The fund is to be used to pay maturing bonds and
interest in the event funds in the Bond Service Account are not sufficient. Otherwise, funds may not be withdrawn until the bond issue is paid in full. However, the income earned on investments may be transferred to the
Bond Service Account. The reserve is invested in a debt service fund agreement, repurchase agreements and
government obligation mutual funds, each stated at fair value.
Depreciation Fund: The Resolution requires the Company to make monthly deposits of an amount equal to onetwelfth of an amount not less than the annual depreciation charges into the Depreciation Fund. The balance also
includes interest income earned. These funds are available to fund capital expenditures. The Depreciation Fund
is collateralized by pledged assets with the Federal Reserve for those funds that exceed the $250,000 FDIC
insurance limit.
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Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund: The Resolution provides for the funding of the Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund to support infrastructure replacement and rehabilitation projects. Budgeted funding
was $750,000 for 2019. This fund is collateralized by pledged assets with the Federal Reserve for those funds
that exceed the $250,000 FDIC insurance limit.
Revenue Fund: The Resolution requires all revenues received by the Company, and not required to be deposited
elsewhere or otherwise reserved for Special Investments, will be collected by the Company and deposited with
a Depository or Depositories to the credit of the Revenue Fund.
Operating Reserve Fund: Per the Resolution, each month the Company shall, after making required payments to
the Bond Service Account, the Bond Reserve Account, and the Depreciation Fund, withdraw from the Revenue
Fund and deposit with a Depository in the name of the Company to the credit of the Operation Fund the balance
remaining in the Revenue Fund.
Rebate Fund: The Board and the Company have covenanted to rebate excess earnings to the United States
in accordance with law. The Rebate Fund is established for this purpose and amounts credited to the Rebate
Fund shall be free from the lien of the Resolution. Payment of any amount due shall be made by the Board of
Water Works and the Company within 15 days following each five-year computation period for the calculation of
excess rebate arbitrage under the Internal Revenue Code. There were no deposits required to be made to this
fund during 2019.
The Company has Bond and Capital related accounts within cash and investments as of December 31, 2019
as follows:
Restricted, Expendable Bond Accounts:
Bond Service Accounts:
Series 2014A
$
466,019
Series 2015
645,049
Series 2019
1,912,459
		 Total restricted, expendable bond service accounts
$ 3,023,527
Bond Construction and Acquisition Fund

$ 23,595,468

		Total restricted, expendable bond accounts

$ 26,618,995

Restricted Reserves – Noncurrent Assets:
Bond Related Reserves:
Bond reserve account

$ 14,942,448

Capital Related Reserves:
Depreciation Fund
Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund
		 Total capital related reserves

2,000,886
15,995,774
$ 17,996,660

		Total Restricted Reserves – Noncurrent Assets
		Total

$ 32,939,108
$ 59,558,103
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NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The Company’s investment policy specifies that the primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities
are safety, liquidity and yield. In addition, funds are to be invested in conformity with federal, state and other legal
requirements, including bond resolutions.
At December 31, 2019, in addition to the reserve funds and the bond service account balances with trustees, as
reflected in Note 3, the Company had $34,155,543 of cash deposits with financial institutions held in temporary
investments collateralized by the financial institutions with pledged assets.
Information related to all cash and investments for December 31, 2019 is included below. Investments (longterm) are presented at Fair Value.
Weighted
Average
Maturity
in Years

Reserve and Bond Accounts:
Money market mutual funds		
Repurchase agreement (GIC)		
		 Total bond reserve and bond service		
Cash in bank – capital related reserves		
		 Total restricted reserves and restricted,
		 expendable bond accounts		
Short-term liquid investments:
U.S. Treasury securities		
Unamortized premium		
		 Total short-term liquid investments		

$33,337,465
8,223,978
41,561,443
17,996,660

0.08
7.98

Credit
Rating

Aaa
Aaa/AA+

59,558,103

38,561,000
34,236
38,595,236

Investments (long-term):
U.S. Treasury securities 		
Unamortized premium		
		 Total investments (long-term)		

34,978,930
415,007
35,393,937

Cash:
Cash in bank		
Petty cash		
Checks outstanding and deposits in transit		
		 Cash and temporary investments		
			 Total cash and investments		

34,155,543
4,296
1,109,893
35,269,732
$168,817,008

0.78

Aaa/AA+

securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Company’s bond reserve and bond service investments are held in the name of the Company by a trustee. All other investments currently held are invested in or
collateralized by U.S Treasury securities.
Credit Risk: The Company’s Investment Guidelines (“the Guidelines”) allow it to invest only in certain authorized
investments which include only “Investment Securities” as defined in the Amended and Restated Revenue
Bond Resolution adopted on November 10, 2009, as supplemented on March 15, 2016. These authorized investments consist of U.S. Government and Federal Agency securities, money market mutual funds, repurchase
agreements, highly rated commercial paper and corporate fixed income securities, FDIC insured bank deposits
and other high quality, low risk investments. The Guidelines also require diversification of the overall portfolio to
eliminate the risk of loss from an overconcentration of assets in a specific class of security, a specific maturity,
or a specific issuer.
Interest Rate Risk: The Company does not have a formal policy limiting maturities of its investments. Investments are made based on the prevailing market conditions and anticipated cash needs at the time of the transaction. The Company’s interest rate risk is mitigated by the relatively short maturity of the securities in which it
invests.

NOTE 5 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF INVESTMENTS
The Company categorizes its fair value measurements using the fair value hierarchy established in GASB 72.
The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value. Assets classified in Level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted for identical assets in active markets. Debt securities classified
in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing approach. Matrix pricing is used to value
securities based on the securities’ relationship to the benchmark quoted prices. Assets classified in Level 3 are
valued based on unobservable inputs.
The Company’s fair value measurements as of December 31, 2019 of investments held in operating, reserves
and bond funds are:

1.35

Aaa/AA+

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Total

Investments by fair value level:
Money market mutual funds
U. S. Treasury Securities
Repurchase agreement (GIC)

$ 33,337,465
34,978,930
-

$

8,223,978

$

-

$ 33,337,465
34,978,930
8,223,978

		 Total

$ 68,316,395

$ 8,223,978

$

-

$ 76,540,373

At December 31, 2019, a portion of U.S. Treasury securities had maturities at the time of purchase of less than
twelve months. These securities are recorded at amortized cost of $38,595,236.

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Company’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Company does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk,
however, the Company has mitigated this risk as all deposits with depository institutions are collateralized by
pledged assets with the Federal Reserve for those funds that exceed the $250,000 FDIC insurance limit.
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Company will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
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NOTE 6 – UTILITY PLANT, NET

NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a schedule of utility plant for the year ended December 31, 2019:

Long-term liabilities at December 31, 2019, are summarized as follows:

Beginning			Ending
Balance
Additions
Reductions
Balance

Capital assets, depreciable
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
		 Total
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
		 Total
Capital assets, net
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
		 Total
			 Utility plant, net

Beginning			
Balance
Additions
Reductions

Bonds payable

$

208,902,428
112,406,224
1,334,869,788
1,656,178,440

(77,652,203 )
(58,442,744 )
(430,818,203 )
(566,913,150 )
1,089,265,290

$ 11,148,556
8,858,797
86,962,003
106,969,356

$

(768,648 ) $ 219,282,336
(1,274,301 )
119,990,720
(4,194,617 ) 1,417,637,174
(6,237,566 ) 1,756,910,230

(6,887,293)
(7,843,600)
(28,269,133)
(43,000,026)

442,546
1,310,326
2,372,950
4,125,822

63,969,330

(2,111,744 ) 1,151,122,876

12,081,522
111,433,422
123,514,944

1,479,834
89,875,987
91,355,821

$ 1,212,780,234

$ 155,325,151

(105,393,836 )
(105,393,836 )

(84,096,950)
(64,976,018 )
(456,714,386 )
(605,787,354 )

13,561,356
95,915,573
109,476,929

$ (107,505,580 ) $1,260,599,805

Ending
Balance

Current
Portion

Noncurrent
Portion

$268,135,000

$155,540,000

$(106,400,000 )

$317,275,000

$15,670,000

$301,605,000

KIA note payable

1,331,331

-

(90,632 )

1,240,699

92,454

1,148,245

Unamortized debt
premiums and
discounts

13,804,499

21,705,243

(5,964,662 )

29,545,080

-

29,545,080

302,900

-

- 		

302,900

-

302,900

Net pension liability 77,085,962

11,702,428

-		

88,788,390

-

88,788,390

22,471,844

-

(1,242,747 )

21,229,097

-

21,229,097

$383,131,536

$188,947,671

$(113,698,041 )

$458,381,166

$15,762,454

$442,618,712

Customer advances
for construction

Net OPEB liability
Total long-term
liabilities

NOTE 8 – BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE
Bonds and notes payable (without bond premium or discounts) consisted of the following:
2019

Water System Revenue Bonds, 2014A tax exempt, fixed interest rates
ranging from 2.5% to 5.0% with maturities from 2014 through 2031

$ 52,360,000

Water System Revenue Bonds, 2015 tax exempt, fixed interest rates
ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% with maturities from 2016 through 2035

109,375,000

Water System Revenue and Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2019 tax
exempt, interest rates ranging from 2.75% to 5.0% with maturities
from 2020 through 2039

155,540,000

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (“KIA”), Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund Loan Program, fixed interest rate of 2.0% and
maturities from 2012 through 2031
Total bonds and notes payable
Less current portion
		 Bonds and notes payable, less current portion

1,240,699
318,515,699
15,762,454
$302,753,245

All bonds are subject to optional redemption provisions.
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The Water System Revenue Bond resolution contains a rate covenant requiring that the schedule of rates and
charges, and the rules and regulations for water services will not be revised so as to result in a decrease of
revenues. Also, future adjustments to water rates and charges are required, as necessary, so that annual net revenues will not be less than 130% of the maximum Aggregate Bond Service for each Bond Fiscal Year in respect
of all outstanding bonds. All revenues of the Company are pledged for the revenue bonds.
Maturities of bonds and notes payable, as of December 31, 2019, are as follows:
Years ended December 31

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
			

Principal

Interest

Total

$15,762,454 $12,631,415
17,529,312
11,607,465
19,251,208
10,771,819
19,498,142
9,851,435
19,530,114
8,920,113
95,846,580
32,371,607
78,702,889
15,290,169
52,395,000
4,181,992

$28,393,869
29,136,777
30,023,027
29,349,577
28,450,227
128,218,187
93,993,058
56,576,992

$318,515,699 $105,626,015

$424,141,714

The Company issued $155,540,000 in tax-exempt bonds on October 30, 2019. The Series 2019 Bonds were
issued for these purposes: (i) financing the cost of capital expenditures, (ii) partially funding the Reserve Account
of the Bond Fund up to the Bond Reserve Requirement, (iii) paying a portion of the costs of issuance of the
Series 2019 Bonds and other related costs and (iv) currently refunding the company Series 2009A Bonds and
Series 2009B Bonds. The Company refunded $29,500,000 of the remaining outstanding Series 2009A Bonds
and $58,210,000 of the remaining outstanding Series 2009B Bonds. Both Series 2009A Bonds and Series 2009B
Bonds were fully redeemed on November 15, 2019. The refunding resulted in a cash flow savings of $8,559,849
and an estimated net present value savings of $8,137,135.

NOTE 9 – DIVIDENDS
The Company is required by bond resolution to pay a dividend to Metro Government, the sole stockholder. The
annual dividend, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the 2009 Master Bond Resolution, is equal to
fifty percent (50%) of the average of the current and prior two fiscal years’ net income before distributions and
contributions with certain adjustments and exclusions (adjusted net income). The dividend is paid quarterly each
year based on estimated annual adjusted net income. The dividend is adjusted upon completion of the annual
audit to reflect any difference between estimated and actual net income, with such adjustment to be made in
the quarterly dividend payments of the following year. The 2019 dividend computed under this provision was
$19,019,796, resulting in an overpayment of $255,024 which will be subtracted from 2020 dividend payments.

NOTE 10 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS
The Company offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plan permits participating employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
An employee may defer up to 100% of adjusted gross compensation or $19,000, whichever is less, to the plan.
The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseen
emergency. Plan assets and liabilities are not recorded by the Company. The Company contributes $0.25 for
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every $1.00 of an employee’s contribution up to $1,500 ($375 maximum Company contribution) to the plan.
The amount contributed to the plan by the Company and charged to expense was $97,229 for the year ended
December 31, 2019.
The Company also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 401(k). An eligible employee may defer up to 100% of adjusted gross compensation or
$19,000, whichever is less, to the plan. As of January 1, 2015, the Company no longer contributes to this plan.

NOTE 11 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN – COST
SHARING - CERS
General Information About the Pension and OPEB Plan: All full-time and eligible part-time employees of the
Company participate in County Employee Retirement System (CERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Kentucky Retirement System (KRS), an agency of the Commonwealth.
Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute Section 78.520, the Board of Trustees (the Board) of KRS
administers CERS, Kentucky Employee Retirement System, and State Police Retirement System. Although the
assets of the systems are invested as a whole, each system’s assets are used only for the payment of benefits
to members of that plan, and a pro rata share of administrative costs.
The plan provides for retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may also
be extended to beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Under the provisions of Kentucky
Revised Statute Section 61.701, the Board of KRS also administers the Kentucky Retirement Systems Insurance Fund. The statutes provide for a single insurance fund to provide group hospital and medical benefits to
retirees drawing a benefit from the three pension funds administered by KRS. The assets of the insurance fund
are invested as a whole. KRS and the Commonwealth have statutory authority to determine Plan benefits and
employer contributions.
KRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for CERS. The report may be obtained by writing to Kentucky Retirement System, Perimeter Park
West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, or it may be found at the KRS website at www.kyret.
ky.gov.
Basis of Accounting: For purposes of measuring the net pension and other postemployment benefits plan
(OPEB) liabilities, deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflow of resources related to pensions and OPEB,
pension and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of CERS and additions to/deductions
from CERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CERS. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Pension Benefits Provided: The information below summarizes the major retirement benefit provisions of
CERS-Non-Hazardous. It is not intended to be, nor should it be interpreted as, a complete statement of all benefit provisions:
Members whose participation began before 8/1/2004:
Age and Service Requirement: Age 65 with at least one month of Nonhazardous duty service credit, or at any
age with 27 or more years of service credit.
Benefit:

If a member has at least 48 months of service, the monthly benefit is 2.20% times final average
compensation times years of service depending on participation and retirement dates. Final compensation is calculated by taking the average of the highest five (5) fiscal years of salary. If the
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number of months of service credit during the five (5) year period is less than forty-eight (48), one
(1) or more additional fiscal years shall be used. If a member has less than 48 months of service, the
monthly benefit is the actuarial equivalent of two times the member’s contributions with interest.

OPEB Benefits Provided: The information below summarizes the major retirement benefit provisions of
CERS-Non-Hazardous. It is not intended to be, nor should it be interpreted as, a complete statement of all benefit provisions:

Members participation began on or after 8/1/2004, but before 9/1/2008:

Insurance Tier 1: Participation began before 7/1/2003

Age and Service Requirement: Age 65 with at least one month of Nonhazardous duty service credit, or at any
age with 27 or more years of service credit.

Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance

Benefit:

If a member has at least 48 months of service, the monthly benefit is 2.00% multiplied by final
average compensation, multiplied by years of service. Final compensation is calculated by taking
the average of the highest five (5) fiscal years of salary. If the number of months of service credit
during the five (5) year period is less than forty-eight (48), one (1) or more additional fiscal years
shall be used. If a member has less than 48 months of service, the monthly benefit is the actuarial
equivalent of two times the member’s contributions with interest.

Benefit:

Insurance Tier 2: Participation began on or after 7/1/2003, but before 9/1/2008
Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance with at least 120 months of service at retirement
Benefit:

Members whose participation began on or after 9/1/2008 but before 1/1/2014:
Age and Service Requirement: Age 65 with 60 months of Nonhazardous duty service credit, or age 57 if age plus
service equals at least 87.
Benefit:

The monthly benefit is the following benefit factor based on service credit at retirement plus 2.00%
for each year of service greater than 30 years, multiplied by final average compensation, multiplied
by years of service.
Service Credit

10 years or less
10+ - 20 years
20+ - 26 years
26+ - 30 years

Benefit Factor

1.10%
1.30%
1.50%
1.75%

Final compensation is calculated by taking the average of the last (not highest) five (5) complete fiscal years of
salary. Each fiscal year used to determine final compensation must contain twelve (12) months of service credit.
Members whose participation began on or after 1/1/2014:
Age and Service Requirement: Age 65 with 60 months of Nonhazardous duty service credit, or age 57 if age plus
service equals at least 87.
Benefit:
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Each year that a member is an active contributing member to the System, the member contributes
5.00% of creditable compensation, and the member’s employer contributes 4.00% of creditable
compensation, which is a portion of the total employer contribution, into a hypothetical account.
The hypothetical account will earn interest annually on both the member’s and employer’s contribution at a minimum rate of 4.00%. If the System’s geometric average net investment return
for the previous five years exceeds 4.00%, then the hypothetical account will be credited with an
additional amount of interest equal to 75.00% of the amount of the return which exceeds 4.00%.
All interest credits will be applied to the hypothetical account balance on June 30 based on the account balance as of June 30 of the previous year. Upon retirement the hypothetical account which
includes member contributions, employer contributions and interest credits can be withdrawn from
the System as a lump sum or annuitized into a single life annuity option.

The percentage of member premiums paid by the retirement system are dependent on the number
of years of service. Benefits also include duty disability retirements, duty death in service, non-duty
death in service and surviving spouse of a retiree.

The system provides a monthly contribution subsidy of $10 for each year of earned service. The
monthly contribution is increased by 1.5% each July 1. Benefits also include duty disability retirements, duty death in service and non-duty death in service.

Insurance Tier 3: Participation began on or after 9/1/2008
Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance with at least 180 months of service at retirement
Benefit:

The system provides a monthly contribution subsidy of $10 for each year of earned service. The
monthly contribution is increased by 1.5% each July 1. Benefits also include duty disability retirements, duty death in service and non-duty death in service.

Contributions: The Company was required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate determined by Statute.
Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 78.545(33) normal contribution and past service contribution rates shall
be determined by the KRS Board based on the basis of an annual valuation last preceding July 1 of a new biennium. The KRS Board may amend contribution rates as of the first day of July of the second year of a biennium,
if it is determined based on the basis of a subsequent actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are
necessary to satisfy requirements determined in accordance with actuarial bases adopted by the KRS Board.
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, participating employers contributed 24.06% (19.30% allocated to
pension and 4.76% allocated to OPEB) as set by KRS, of each Nonhazardous employee’s creditable compensation. This percentage is inclusive of both pension and insurance payments for employers. Administrative costs
of KRS are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings. House Bill 362 passed during the
2018 legislative session caps CERS employer contribution rate increases up to 12% per year over the prior fiscal
year for the period of July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2028. However, a non-codified section of Senate Bill 249 passed
in 2019 pauses the employer contribution rate for CERS for one year, keeping the 2021 rates at current 2020
levels. Therefore, the employer contribution rates for July 1, 2020 through June 30, 6 2021 shall remain 24.06
percent for nonhazardous duty employees, consisting of 19.30 percent for pension and 4.76 percent for health
insurance, and 39.58 percent for hazardous duty employees, consisting of 30.06 percent for pension and 9.52
percent for health insurance. Any future increases in contribution rates after June 30, 2021, shall use these rates
as the base rates for calculation of future increases in rates. Pursuant to KRS 61.565, rates shall not increase
by more than 12 percent in terms of projected dollars paid by participating employers over the prior fiscal year.
The Company has met 100% of the contribution funding requirement for the year ended December 31, 2019.
Total contributions for the year were $5,651,953 for pension and $1,832,878 for OPEB.
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Members whose participation began before 9/1/2008:
Nonhazardous member contributions equal 5% of all creditable compensation. Interest paid on the members’
accounts is currently 2.5%; and per statute shall not be less than 2.0%. Members are entitled to a full refund of
contributions with interest.
Members whose participation began on or after 9/1/2008:

developed for each asset class. The ranges are combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset allocation percentage.
(d) Municipal Bond Rate: The discount rate determination does not use a municipal bond rate.
(e) Periods of Projected Benefit Payments: The long-term assumed rate of return was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Nonhazardous members contributions equal to 6% of all creditable compensation, with 5% being credited to
the member’s account and 1% deposited to the KRS 401(h) Account. Interest paid on the members’ accounts
will be set at 2.5%. Members are entitled to a full refund of contributions and interest in their individual account,
however, the 1% contributed to the insurance fund is non-refundable.

(f)

Members whose participation based on or after 1/1/2014:

US Equity
Non-US Equity
Private Equity
Specialty Credit/High Yield
Core Bonds
Cash
Real Estate
Opportunistic
Real Return
		Total

Nonhazardous member contributions equal to 6% of all creditable compensation, with 5% being credited to
the member’s account and 1% deposited to the KRS 401(h) Account. Members are entitled to a full refund of
contributions and interest on the member’s portion of the hypothetical account, however, the 1% contributed to
the insurance fund is non-refundable.

Pension Information
Total Pension Liability: The total pension liability (“TPL”) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2019, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Price Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return

2.30 percent
3.30 to 11.55 percent, varies by service
6.25 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

The mortality table used for active members was a Pub-2010 General Mortality table, for the Non-Hazardous
System, and the Pub-2010 Public Safety Mortality table for the Hazardous System, projected with the ultimate
rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010. The mortality table used for
healthy retired members is a system-specific mortality table based on mortality experience from 2013-2018,
projected with the ultimate rates from MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2019. The
mortality table used for the disabled members was PUB-2010 Disabled Mortality table, with a 4-year set-forward
for both male and female rates, projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale
using a base year of 2010. Discount rate assumptions include:
(a) Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.25%.
(b) Projected Cash Flows: The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the local
employers and plan members would contribute the statutorily determined contribution rate of projected
compensation over the remaining 25-year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The
actuarial determined contribution rate is adjusted to reflect the phase in of anticipated gains on actuarial
value of assets over the first four years of the projection period.
(c) Long-Term Rate of Return: The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular
experience studies prepared every five years for the System. The most recent analysis, performed for the
period covering fiscal years 2008 through 2013 is outlined in a report dated April 30, 2014. However, the
Board of KRS has the authority to review the assumptions on a more frequent basis and adopt new assumptions prior to the next scheduled experience study. The long-term expected rate of return was determined
by using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of returns are
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Assumed Asset Allocation: The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

			
		
Target
Asset Class
Allocation

18.75
18.75
10.00
15.00
13.50
1.00
5.00
3.00
15.00
100.00%

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return %

4.30
4.80
6.65
2.60
1.35
0.20
4.85
2.97
4.10

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan assets was established by the KRS Board of Trustees at
6.25% based on a blending of the factors described above.
(g) Sensitivity Analysis: This paragraph requires disclosure of the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the Company’s allocated portion of the net pension liability
(“NPL”) of the System, calculated using the discount rate of 6.25 percent, as well as what the Company’s
allocated portion of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage-point lower (5.25 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (7.25 percent) than the current rate:
		Current
1% Decrease
Discount Rate
(5.25%)
(6.25%)

Net position liability -Nonhazardous

$111,049,092

$88,788,390

1% Increase
(7.25%)

$70,234,310

Employer’s Portion of the Collective Net Pension Liability: The Company’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability, as indicated in the prior table, is $88,788,390, or approximately 1.26%. The proportionate share for 2018
was 1.27%. The net pension liability was distributed based on 2019 actual employer contributions to the plan.
Measurement Date: The total pension liability, net pension liability, and sensitivity information shown in this report are based on an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2018. The total pension liability was rolled-forward from
the valuation date to the plan’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 using generally accepted actuarial principles.
Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms: There have been no plan provision changes since June 30, 2018.
However, the Board of Trustees has adopted new actuarial assumptions since June 30, 2018. These assumptions are documented in the report titled “Kentucky Retirement Systems 2018 Actuarial Experience Study for
the Period Ending June 30, 2018”. The Total Pension liability as of June 30, 2019 is determined using these
updated assumptions.
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Changes Since Measurement Date: There were no changes between the measurement date of the collective
net pension liability and the employer’s reporting date.
Pension Expense: The Company was allocated pension expense of $15,935,152 related to the CERS for the year
ending June 30, 2019.
Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows: Since certain expense items are amortized over closed periods each
year, the deferred portions of these items must be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce pension
expense they are labeled as deferred inflows. If they will increase pension expense, they are labeled deferred
outflows. The amortization of these amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with no interest included in
the deferred amounts. Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in actuarial assumptions, if any, are
amortized over the average remaining service life of the active and inactive System members at the beginning
of the fiscal year. Investment gains and losses are amortized over a fixed five-year period. Deferred inflows and
outflows as of the measurement date include:

Difference between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate shares of contributions
Differences between expected and actual investment
earnings on plan investments
		
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
		 Total

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$ 2,267,034
8,986,393

$ 375,154
-

843,921

-

12,097,348
3,169,372
$ 15,266,720

1,431,306
1,806,460
$1,806,460

Deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date of
$3,169,372 will be recognized as a reduction of net pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2020. The
remainder of the deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources are amortized over the remaining service
lives of participants with remaining amortization as follows:
2020
$ 6,874,176
2021
2,413,933
2022
901,234
2023
101,545
Total

$ 10,290,888

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued pension plan financial reports.

OPEB Information
Total OPEB Liability: The total other postemployment benefits plan (“OPEB”) was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2019, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:
Price inflation
Payroll growth rate
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
Healthcare trend rates:
		
Pre-65
		

Post-65

Mortality:
		
Pre-retirement

		

Post-retirement (non- disabled)

		

Post-retirement (disabled)

2.30%
2.00%
3.30% to 11.55%, varies by service
6.25%
Initial trend starting at 7.25% at January 1, 2019 and gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 13 years.
Initial trend starting at 5.10% at January 1, 2019 and gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 11
years.
PUB-2010 General Mortality table, for the Non-Hazardous Systems,
and the PUB-2010 Public Safety Mortality table for the Hazardous
Systems, projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010
System-specific mortality table based on mortality experience from
2013-2018, projected with the ultimate rates from MP-2014 mortality
improvement scale using a base year of 2019
PUB-2010 Disabled Mortality table, with a 4-yeat set-forward for both
male and female rates, projected with the ultimate rates from the
MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010

Discount rate assumptions include:
(a) Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.68%.
(b) Projected Cash Flows: The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the local
employers and plan members would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of projected
compensation over the remaining 24-year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.
(c) Long-Term Rate of Return: The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular
experience studies prepared every five years for the System. The most recent analysis, performed for the
period covering fiscal years 2008 through 2013 is outlined in a report dated April 30, 2014. However, the
Board of KRS has the authority to review the assumptions on a more frequent basis and adopt new assumptions prior to the next scheduled experience study. The long-term expected rate of return was determined
by using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of returns are
developed for each asset class. The ranges are combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset allocation percentage.
(d) Municipal Bond Rate: The discount rate determination used a municipal bond rate of 3.13% as reported in
Fidelity Index’s “20 – Year Municipal GO AA Index” as of June 28, 2019.
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(e) Period of Projected Benefit Payments: Current assets, future contributions, and investment earnings are
projected to be sufficient to pay the projected benefit payments from the retirement system. However, the
cost associated with the implicit employer subsidy is not currently being included in the calculation of the
system’s actuarial determined contributions, and it is the actuary’s understanding that any cost associated
with the implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the system’s trust. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was
applied to future expected benefit payments associated with the implicit subsidy.
(f)

Assumed Asset Allocations: The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

			
		
Target
Asset Class
Allocation

US Equity
Non-US Equity
Private Equity
Specialty Credit/High Yield
Core Bonds
Cash
Real Estate
Opportunistic
Real Return
		Total

18.75
18.75
10.00
15.00
13.50
1.00
5.00
3.00
15.00
100.00%

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

4.30
4.80
6.65
2.60
1.35
0.20
4.85
2.97
4.10

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan assets was established by the KRS Board of Trustees
at 6.25% based on a blending of the factors described above.
(g) Sensitivity Analysis: This paragraph requires disclosure of the sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes
in the discount rate and changes in the healthcare cost trend rate.
The following presents the Company’s allocated portion of the net OPEB liability of the System, calculated
using the discount rate of 5.68%, as well as what the Company’s allocated portion of the System’s net
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.68%)
or 1-percentage-point higher (6.68%) than the current rate for non-hazardous:
		Current
1% Decrease
Discount Rate
(4.68%)
(5.68%)

1% Increase
(6.68%)

Net OPEB liability

$15,289,229

$28,438,257

$21,229,097

Measurement Date: The total OPEB liability, net OPEB liability, and sensitivity information shown in this report
are based on an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2018. The total OPEB liability was rolled-forward from the
valuation date to the plan’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, using generally accepted actuarial principles.
Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms: There have been no plan provision changes since June 30, 2018.
However, the Board of Trustees has adopted new actuarial assumptions since June 30, 2018. These assumptions are documented in the report titled “Kentucky Retirement Systems 2018 Actuarial Experience Study for
the Period Ending June 30, 2018”. The Total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 is determined using these
updated assumptions. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.85% in the prior year
compared to 5.68% used for the current year.
Changes Since Measurement Date: There were no changes between the measurement date of the collective
net OPEB liability and the employer’s reporting date.
OPEB Expense: The Company was allocated OPEB expense of $2,348,450 related to the CERS for the year
ending June 30, 2019.
Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows: Since certain expense items are amortized over closed periods each
year, the deferred portions of these items must be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce OPEB
expense they are labeled as deferred inflows. If they will increase OPEB expense they are labeled as deferred
outflows. The amortization of these amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with no interest included in
the deferred amounts. Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in actuarial assumptions, if any, are
amortized over the average remaining service life of the active and inactive System members at the beginning
of the fiscal year. Investment gains and losses are amortized over a fixed five-year period. Deferred inflows and
outflows as of the Measurement Date include:

Difference between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate shares of contributions
Differences between expected and actual investment
earnings on plan investments
		
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

$

6,281,887

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$ 6,405,310
42,007

235,640

161,276

6,517,527
1,150,852

942,903
7,551,496
-

$ 7,668,379

$ 7,551,496

The following presents the Company’s allocated portion of the net OPEB liability of the System, calculated
using the healthcare cost trend rate, as well as what the Company’s allocated portion of the System’s net
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate for non-hazardous:
Current Healthcare
1% Decrease
Cost Trend Rate

Net OPEB liability

$15,788,188

$21,229,097

1% Increase

$27,826,845

Employer’s Portion of the Collective OPEB Liability: The Company’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability,
as indicated in the prior table, is $21,229,097, or approximately 1.26%. The proportionate share for 2018 was
1.27%. The net OPEB liability was distributed based on 2019 actual employer contributions to the plan.
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Deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date
of $1,150,852 which include the implicit subsidy reported of $369,183, will be recognized as a reduction of
net OPEB liability in the year ending December 31, 2020. The remainder of the deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources are amortized over the remaining service lives of participants with remaining amortization
as follows:
2020
$ (137,900)
2021
(137,900)
2022
161,889
2023
(412,458)
2024
(427,553)
Thereafter
(80,047)

Schedule of the Company’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
December 31, 2019
2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Company’s proportion of
the net pension liability

1.26%

1.27%

1.24%

1.19%

1.28%

1.25%

Company’s proportionate
share of the net
pension liability

$88,788,390

$77,085,962

$72,516,743

$58,797,619

$55,122,691 $40,419,796

Company’s covered
payroll

$31,845,498

$31,370,897

$29,830,808

$28,494,478

$29,911,208 $29,126,777

Company’s proportionate
share of the net pension
liability as a percentage
of its covered payroll

278.81%

245.72%

243.09%

206.35%

184.29%

138.77%

Self-Insurance: The Company retains certain insurable risks up to a fixed maximum per claim exposure. The
risk is mitigated by maintaining a self-insured retention (“S.I.R.”) of $1,000,000 per occurrence for auto and
general liability claims and lawsuits with excess liability insurance above the S.I.R. in multiple layers totaling
$35,000,000. Claims and suits are managed by the Company with the assistance of outside counsel.

Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the
total pension liability

50.45%

53.54%

53.30%

55.50%

59.97%

66.80%

The Company is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims with excess insurance in place with a specific
(per occurrence) retention of $600,000, an estimated policy aggregate retention of $3,096,667 (approximately
363% of deposit premium based upon payroll estimates) and an aggregate limit of $3,000,000.Workers’ compensation claims are managed by a third-party administrator with oversight by the Company.

1)

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the June 30 year-end that occurred within the fiscal year.

2)

GASB 68 requires this schedule to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Company is presenting information for those years for which information is available.

		

$(1,033,969)

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position is available
in the separately issued OPEB plan financial reports.

NOTE 12 – CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Notes:

Changes in the liability for self-insurance for liability and workers’ compensation claims are as follows:
2019

2018

Liability – beginning of year
Accruals for current year claims and changes in estimate
Claims paid

$1,612,744
1,947,299
(989,734 )

$1,756,285
762,245
(905,786)

Liability – end of year

$2,570,309

$1,612,744

Claims have not exceeded coverage for the last 2 years.
Claims and Litigation: The Company is involved in litigation, which has arisen out of operations in the ordinary
course of business. The Company accrues losses from litigation as a liability based on estimates. While it is
not possible to forecast the outcomes of litigation, it is the opinion of the Company’s management, based on
evaluations by outside counsel, that they will not have a material adverse effect on the Financial Statements of
the Company.
Construction Commitments: The estimated cost to complete construction projects under contract was approximately $97.7 million at December 31, 2019.
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Schedule of the Company’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability
County Employees’ Retirement System – Non-Hazardous

Schedule of the Company’s Pension Contributions
December 31, 2019

December 31, 2019
2019

2018

1.26%

1.27%

Company’s proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability

$21,229,097

$22,471,844

Company’s covered payroll

$31,845,498

$31,370,897

Company’s proportion of the net OPEB
liability

Company’s proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability

2)

Statutorily required
contribution

66.66%

60.44%

2018

2017

2016

$ 5,651,953 $ 4,994,870 $ 4,402,741

Contributions in relation
to the statutorily
required contribution
Annual contribution
deficiency (excess)

(5,651,953)

$

(4,994,870 )

- $

$ 3,848,753

(4,402,741 )

- $

-

2015

$ 3,680,646 $ 3,907,026

(3,848,753 )

$

-

2014

(3,680,646 )

$

- $

(3,907,026 )

-

71.63%

57.62%

Notes:
1)

2019

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the June 30 year-end that occurred within the fiscal year.
GASB 75 requires this schedule to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the Company is presenting information for those years for which information is available.

Company’s contributions
as a percentage of
statutorily required
contribution for pension
Company’s covered
payroll
Contributions as a percentage
of its covered payroll

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

$32,166,042

$31,805,010

$30,405,336

$29,125,528

17.57%

15.70%

14.48%

13.21%

100.00%

100.00%

$29,787,416 $29,411,439

12.36%

13.28%

Note:
1)
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This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a
full 10-year trend is compiled, the Company is presenting information for those years for which information
is available.
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Schedule of the Company’s Pension Contributions
December 31, 2019

R E Q U I R E D S U P P L E M E N TA R Y I N F O R M AT I O N
Schedule of the Company’s OPEB Contributions
County Employees’ Retirement System – Non-Hazardous

Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms:

December 31, 2019

2019: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the total pension liability have been updated as follows:

Statutorily required contribution

• Salary increases were increased from 3.05% to range of 3.30% - 10.30%.
• The Mortality Table was changed from RP-2000 to Pub-2010.
2018: There were no changes in assumptions and benefit terms since the prior measurement date.
2017: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the total pension liability have been updated as follows:
• The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.50% to 6.25%.
• The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.25% to 2.30%.
• Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.00% to 3.05%.
2016: There were no changes in assumptions and benefit terms since the prior measurement date.
2015: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the total pension liability have been updated as described in Schedule D of the CERS actuary report. The
changes are noted below:
• The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.75% to 7.50%.
• The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.50% to 3.25%.
• The assumed rate of wage inflation was reduced from 1.00% to 0.75%.

2019

Contributions in relation to the statutorily
required contribution
Annual contribution deficiency (excess)

$

-

$ 32,166,042

$ 31,805,010

5.70%

5.10%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a
full 10-year trend is compiled, the Company is presenting information for those years for which information
is available.

Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms:
2019: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the total pension liability have been updated as follows:
• Salary increases were increased from 3.05% to range of 3.30% - 10.30%.
• The Mortality Table was changed from RP-2000 to Pub-2010.
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$

100.00%

• The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB
to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females).

• The assumed rates of Retirement, Withdrawal and Disability were updated to more accurately reflect experience.

(1,621,263 )

100.00%

• Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.50% to 4.00%.

• For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality
Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (setback 1 year for females). For disabled members, the RP-2000
Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for
the period after disability retirement. There is some margin in the current mortality tables for possible future
improvement in mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again when the next experience investigation is conducted.

-

Contributions as a percentage of its covered
payroll
1)

$ 1,621,263

(1,832,878 )

Company’s contributions as a percentage of
statutorily required contribution for OPEB
Company’s covered payroll

2018

$ 1,832,878

2018: There were no changes in assumptions and benefit terms since the prior measurement date.
2017: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the total OPEB liability have been updated as follows:
• The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.50% to 6.25%.
• The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.25% to 2.30%.
• Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.00% to 3.05%.
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Schedule of Investments

2019 Series Bond Issue

December 31, 2019
				
Yield
Maturity
Par

Bond Reserve Account Treasury Obligation Fund (FOCXX)
Bayerische Landesbank Repo
Bayerische Landesbank Repo

1.23%
3.46%
3.46%

01/31/20
11/15/25
11/15/29

Bond Service Account - Series 2014A
Treasury Obligation Fund (FOCXX)

1.23%

01/31/20

Bond Service Account - Series 2015
Treasury Obligation Fund (FOCXX)

1.23%

01/31/20

Fair Market
Value

$ 6,718,470 $ 6,718,470
3,916,464
3,916,464
4,307,514
4,307,514

466,019

645,049

466,019

645,049

Bond Service Account - Series 2019
Treasury Obligation Fund (FOCXX)

1.23%

01/31/20

1,912,459

1,912,459

Bond Service Account - Series 2019 COI
Treasury Obligation Fund (FOCXX)

1.23%

01/31/20

30,498

30,498

Bond Service Account - Series 2019 Construction
Treasury Obligation Fund (FOCXX)

Master Resolution Date
Sixth supplemental resolution date
Original amount
Interest rate
Bonds payable
Interest payable
Call provisions in whole or in part

November 10, 2009
September 17, 2019
$155,540,000
2.75% to 5.00%
November 15
May 15 and November 15
100% after November 15, 2029

2015 Series Bond Issue
The tax-exempt Water System Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only
from revenue of the Company.
Master Resolution Date
Fourth supplemental resolution date
Original amount
Interest rate
Bonds payable
Interest payable
Call provisions in whole or in part

November 10, 2009
October 20, 2015
$119,445,000
2.00% to 5.00%
November 15
May 15 and November 15
100% after November 15, 2025

2014A Series Bond Issue
1.23%

01/31/20

Treasury Portfolio
US Treasury Note
1.63%
06/15/20
US Treasury Note
1.63%
09/15/20
US Treasury Note
1.63%
12/15/20
US Treasury Note
1.63%
03/15/21
US Treasury Note
1.63%
06/15/21
				

23,564,970

23,564,970

9,246,000
9,246,000
9,757,000
9,757,000
19,558,000
19,558,000
14,823,000
14,952,108
19,740,000
20,026,822
$114,685,443 $115,101,373

Note:
US Treasury Notes with greater than 1 year until maturity are presented at Fair Value and will vary from Statement of Net Position by the premium amortization of $10,817. US Treasury Notes with less than 1 year until
maturity will be presented at PAR value and will vary from Statement of Net Position by unamortized premium
of $34,236.
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The tax-exempt Water System Revenue Bonds and Refunding Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of
Water Works and are payable only from revenue of the Company.

The tax-exempt Water System Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only
from revenue of the Company.
Master Resolution Date
Third supplemental resolution date
Original amount
Interest rate
Bonds payable
Interest payable
Call provisions in whole or in part

November 10, 2009
July 15, 2014
$63,195,000
2.50% to 5.00%
November 15
May 15 and November 15
100% after November 15, 2022

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA)
Date of Assistance Agreement
Original amount
Interest rate
Principal & Interest payable
Loan Maturity

December 1, 2009
$1,915,499
2.00%
June 1 and December 1
December 1, 2031
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Schedule of Outstanding Bond Indebtedness and Annual Debt Service Requirements
2019 Bonds
Aggregate
Principal		Bond
Installments
Interest
Service

Year ending December 31

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
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$

8,280,000
8,525,000
9,665,000
9,490,000
9,085,000
8,675,000
8,260,000
7,790,000
7,355,000
6,230,000
5,050,000
3,805,000
7,750,000
6,625,000
5,305,000
3,950,000
11,580,000
10,425,000
9,135,000
8,560,000

$ 6,881,042
6,191,800
5,765,550
5,282,300
4,807,800
4,353,550
3,919,800
3,506,800
3,117,300
2,749,550
2,438,050
2,185,550
1,995,300
1,607,800
1,409,050
1,249,900
1,131,400
784,000
497,313
246,100

$ 15,161,042
14,716,800
15,430,550
14,772,300
13,892,800
13,028,550
12,179,800
11,296,800
10,472,300
8,979,550
7,488,050
5,990,550
9,745,300
8,232,800
6,714,050
5,199,900
12,711,400
11,209,000
9,632,313
8,806,100

$ 155,540,000

$ 60,119,955

$ 215,659,955

2015 Bonds
Aggregate
Principal		Bond
Installments
Interest
Service

Year ending December 31

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
			

Year ending December 31

$

3,725,000
5,110,000
5,560,000
5,845,000
6,145,000
6,430,000
6,660,000
6,860,000
7,070,000
7,285,000
7,510,000
7,745,000
7,980,000
8,225,000
8,480,000
8,745,000

$ 3,904,169
3,717,919
3,462,419
3,184,419
2,892,169
2,584,919
2,327,719
2,127,919
1,922,119
1,710,019
1,491,469
1,256,781
1,024,431
785,031
538,281
273,279

$

7,629,169
8,827,919
9,022,419
9,029,419
9,037,169
9,014,919
8,987,719
8,987,919
8,992,119
8,995,019
9,001,469
9,001,781
9,004,431
9,010,031
9,018,281
9,018,279

$ 109,375,000

$ 33,203,062

$ 142,578,062

2014A Bonds
Aggregate
Principal		Bond
Installments
Interest
Service

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031

$ 3,665,000
3,800,000
3,930,000
4,065,000
4,200,000
4,350,000
4,430,000
4,525,000
4,635,000
4,760,000
4,910,000
5,090,000

$ 1,821,850
1,675,250
1,523,250
1,366,050
1,203,450
1,035,450
926,700
815,950
680,200
541,150
374,550
178,150

$ 5,486,850
5,475,250
5,453,250
5,431,050
5,403,450
5,385,450
5,356,700
5,340,950
5,315,200
5,301,150
5,284,550
5,268,150

			

$ 52,360,000

$ 12,142,000

$ 64,502,000
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KIA Note
Aggregate
Principal		Bond
Installments
Interest
Service

Year ending December 31

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
			

$

92,454
94,312
96,208
98,142
100,114
102,127
104,180
106,274
108,410
110,589
112,811
115,078

$ 24,354
22,496
20,600
18,666
16,694
14,681
12,629
10,535
8,398
6,219
3,997
1,729

$

116,808
116,808
116,808
116,808
116,808
116,808
116,809
116,809
116,808
116,808
116,808
116,807

$ 1,240,699

$ 160,998

$ 1,401,697

Schedule of Operating and Maintenance Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2019
Operating and maintenance expenses

Pumping
Water Treatment
Transmission and distribution
Customer accounts expenses
Administrative and general expenses
Operating expenses over (under) applied
		Total operating and maintenance expenses
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$ 8,467,761
11,779,915
17,429,964
11,401,408
32,903,628
1,000,858
$ 82,983,534

C O R P O R AT E I N F O R M AT I O N
BOARD OF WATER WORKS
As of December 31, 2019
The Board of Water Works is the governing body of Louisville Water Company. It includes six members appointed by the Mayor of Louisville Metro, who also serves as
an ex officio member. No more than three of the appointed members may be from the same political party. Board
members serve staggered four-year terms and may succeed themselves.

GREG FISCHER
Mayor, Louisville
Metro (ex officio)

CREIGHTON MERSHON DR. SUNDEEP DRONAWAT
Chair - Retired,
General Counsel, BellSouthATT/KY Operations

President, Payment
Holdings, CEO &
Co-Founder, POS on Cloud

DR. SHARON KERRICK

TIERRA KAVANAUGH
WAYNE*

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM
As of December 31, 2019
PAUL ESSELMAN

Chief Financial Officer,
Mint Julep Experiences

Chair, College of Education &
Human Development, University
of Louisville

CEO and Founder
TKT & Associates

WILLMAN RETIRES FROM BOARD

Left to Right:
MICHAEL TIGUE, Vice President, Compliance, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
ADAM CARTER, President AFSCME Local 1683
KELLEY DEARING SMITH, Vice President, Communications and Marketing
TERRENCE SPENCE, Vice President, Human Resources and Labor Relations
SPENCER BRUCE, President and Chief Executive Officer
LYNN PEARSON, Vice President, Finance and Treasurer
TOM LUCKETT, Vice President, Information Technology and Chief Information Officer
DAVE VOGEL, Executive Vice President, Customer Service and Distribution Operations

Craig Willman stepped down from
the Board of Water Works (BOWW)
in December 2019. A retired Louisville firefighter, Willman joined the
Board in 2013. Willman’s greatest
assets were his diligence in being
an ambassador for Louisville Water
employees and his staunch support
of building Louisville Water’s brand.
Willman, who served as BOWW
Vice Chair, also spent a considerable amount of time working with company and union leadership to continually improve our partnership. He was also
involved in marketing and audit committees, helped guide
Louisville Water’s most recent strategic business plan, and
represented Louisville Water on the One Water Board.

TIM KRAUS, Vice President, Production Operations and Chief Engineer

* Wayne served on the Board from 2017-2019. We note
with great sadness that she passed away in April 2020.
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